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TESTIMDNY OF CATHERINE IEISY

or peaks in it, each one signifying a different DNA type
at a location. We then convert the raw data 1nto a table

that includes the items that we've tested, the STR

- locations that we‘ve~testedwas“well as the DNA types found

at eachAof'these locations so that we can compare the
evidence profile to a standard. ’
Q What is touch DNA?

A" When we refer to touch DNA we just mean skin cells

that have been transferred to an object that has been held

" .or touched and it could just be as simple as touching an

item.with your fingers, it can also be transferred by
sweat if an object is held for a long time, 1t‘s also
affected by how tlghtly you hold an object and the other
people have held the. objects.. There are qulte a few
factors that go into whether or not we can develop
proflles from touch DNA. Y !

Q = Did you do some work in this case ldentlfled as SLED
lab number 10~ 04902 from Lancaster County?

A Yes, I dld

Q- Dld you have some subm1831ons presented to you to see

if you could develop. DNA.profiles from?

A I did.

Q And again, 7711 ask you the same question I asked
Ms. Simmons a minute ago, do youtgo out in the field and

work crime scenes and collect evidence.yourself?
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TESTIMONY OF CATHERINE LEISY

A No, Idomnot:

Q I'm.go;ng-to hand you some stuff. Well, before I do
that, what is the most common way fcr you-to~~; what ie
the most common sample you would receive to work: with to

try to develop a DNA profile from a deceased person’>

A .Typlcally from a:deceased individual we .receive a

blood standard, it can either be a tube of liquid blood

collected at ‘autopsy, sometlmes it is drled for us on

" filter paper and labeled- w1th that 1nd1v1dual S name.
10
11

Q Is there a way for law ‘enforcement to collect

-materlal that from.whlch you could.develop a DNA proflle

R 1

A From llVlng 1nd1v1duals, agaln, -we can recelve a-

blood standard that has been drawn from that living

individual. It. 1s more common for us to receive what we

call buccal swabs Wthh are just oral swabs that are
collected from an lnleldual'S cheek that contain enoughv-
cells for us to develop a DNA.proflle.

Q And is there a standard package for collection of
buccal swabs, ' something that sort of comes prepackaged and
a way to_do”it and preserve it? ‘ A |

A There are certain kits that are used for buccal

swabs, sometimes we receive kits, sometime we receive

Q-tips in an envelope,‘it just depends on the agency.

Q Are there methods for local law enforcement to
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TESTIMONY OF 'CATHERINE LEISY

collect the evidence which could potentially lead to the
development of a DNA profile from an inanimate object?

A Yes, sir.

Q And how would that perhaps commonly occur?

A Depending on the type of sample being taken, if there
is liquid blood.present they would just need to use'a
sterile cotton swab, egain'Very similar to the Q-tip, they

can then- just swab any liquid to be present that they

- believe would be bodily fluid. If they were trying to

touch for DNA I believe they will wet the swab with a

sterile water to collect more with the cells when the N

Altems are swabbed.

Q I'm going to show you some stuff. Did you receive

some samples on this case to see if you could develop

'.proflles from?

A Yes, I did. A ,
Q All right. I'm just going to-start handing you some

envelopes one at a time. .. Can you -— are you familiar with

the contents of that envelope'>

A Yes, 1 am.
Q  And what's in that envelope?
A This envelope contains a blood sample that is

“W“;:. = L

identified as belonging to VSiHE:

Q All right. And I think I'm going to refer to it, I

think it has got an evidence sticker on it, State's Number

503
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g TESTIMONY. OF CATHERINE LEISY '

81 for identificatioﬁ.A Now, what is the actual sample for
numbered'by SLED item number?

A When the original sample was logged in it came in as
SIED item number one, it was a tube of blood and it was
identified for tox1cology testing.

Q Do you break it down. —- take part of it and give ‘that

-part the subject item number?

A It was requested that an analyst in toxicology
basically take a small}portionﬁdf a sample submitted»that'
was tﬁeﬁ sub-itemized as SLED item 1.1 for me to be able
to use a profile for Ms. Jackson. |

Q ° And is State s. Exhlblt 81 for ldentlflcatlon that
item 1.1 that you worked with?

.A ?es, sir, it iéh‘ \

Q Tell me what is in that'envelope. And if it'é gét

a —- I should have done this too -- State's Exhibit Nunber

82 for identification, can you tell me what ‘is in that?

A - This pouch bontains buccal swabs to be used. for a

standard for Anthony Carter.

Q0 Is this what you worked from?

A 'Yes, it is. o _ .~
Q I show you State's Exhibit Number.78 for
identification. Can you tell me what that is?
A . This pouch contains the buccal swabs from Marico

Stevens to be used to develop standards.
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Q0 Did you work with that item?

A - Yes, I did. ‘

0 T show you State's Exhibit Number 84 for
identification. Can you“tell me what is contained in
that? . ‘ | . i

A This pouch contains the buccal swabs from Emmy Coats
to be used for develbping standard‘purposes;

Q Did you analyze that item?

A Yes, I did. .

Q © T"1l show you State's Exhibit Number 83 for

identification. Can you tell me what that is?

~A This pouch contains two sets of evidence swabs, one

set was labeled aS'swabs“that came,fromrthe vehicle, the
other was a set of swaBs_ffom a Hi—poiﬁf weabdn.

Q  Did you work with all of tﬁe.numberediitéms in that
envélopé? V

A Yes, I did.

0 And I'm going to hénd you finally —- and that was
State's, Exhibit Number 83 for identification. i‘m §oing
to hand you one that doesn't have a sticker on it yet.
Can you tell me what's in there? |

A This pouch contéinS‘the buccal swab from Jacqueline
Sanderé to be used to develop a standard on. -

0 Did you work with that? o

A Yes, sir.

505
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1 MR. BARFIELD: Your Honor, at this time I would offer
2 all of these 1tems as exhibits, and one of them doesn t yet
3- have a number on it 'so I need to get a sticker.
4 (The items were received as State's 78 and 81-84.)
5 0 Ms. lLeisy, let me flrst ask you about SLED 1tem
6 numbers 13, 14-and 15 whlch are. contalned.WLthln State's
7 Exhibit Number 83, 13, 14 and 15.. What were 13, 14 and
8 157 - -
9 A They were 1dent1f1ed as swabs from a vehicle; they .ue
10 broke down —- SLED ltem.13 was a swab from the drlver S
11 side quartér panel, SLED item 14 will be swabs from'the
12 . inside of the paesengeereor, and SIED item 15 is swabs
‘13. from the left side of the back seat.
14 Q Dld you develop a DNA.proflle from one oOr more of.i
15 those swabs? | - : '
}6 A I developed the same DNA profile %rom all three
17 swabs. | ,
18 Q  Did you develop e DNA;profile~from item 1.1 which is
19 - State's EXhlblt NUmber 81 which-you prev1ously said was a
20 blood standard framiglw ' ' '
21 A Yes, I dld
22 Q Did you compare the proflles of the blood standard
03 —
. 24 from the car which you developed profiles from?

N
821

A I did..



o O oy U W N

10
11
12

13

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

507
. 526
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Q Did you reach any conclusions about =- in youf
comparison of those four items? -

A I did. The DNA profile developed from the three sets
of“swabs taken from the vehicle matches the DNA profile. of

Q0  What are specifically 18, 19 and 20, SLED numbers 18,
19 and 20 which are also contained within State's Exhibit
Number 83?2 What are 18, 19 and 20? ,

A Eighteeh, 19'and120'were the tﬁree swabs dollected
from the Hi—poin£ weapon\' SLED 18 waslthe swab taken from
the trigger point of the Hi-point, swab 19 end.SLEb 20 was
taken from the back slide of the Hifpoinﬁ. ’

QA«. Did youiwork on those swabs td getermine if you codld
develop a DNA.profile‘from either'bne of those'three swebe
off the Hi;ppint pistol? o S

A - Yes. 1 was able to develop alérofile-from.all three -
swabs . | h B |

Q Did :you develop DNA.proflles from ltems - let me
give you the numbers -— State's EXhlblt 82 which I think
is SLED' item 26, the buccal swabs from.Anthony Carter, did
you develop a DNA.proflle from them?

A Yes, I did.

0 Did you develop a DNA profile from State's Exhibit
Number 78 which is SLED 1tem number 27 which T thlnk you

said was the buccal swabs from Marico SteVens?
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A Yes, I did develop a proflle from that item.
Q Did you develop a proflle from State's Exhlblt Number

-84 which I thlnk you' ve testified was SLED 1tem 28, buccal
" swabs from Emmie Amanda Coats°

A YeS, I dld.

.0 And did. you develop a proflle from. State's Exhibit

Number 83 Wthh lS SLED item number -— well, actually we
talked about the proflle These are the swabs from the

- car and fram the gun, you ve already testlfled about that.

Did you do comparlson ~- did you develop a profile from
State S Exhlblt Nuroer 93 which you said was SLED ;tem
NUmber 29, buccal swabs from Jacquellne Sanders7

As Yes,,I dld

Q. Let me ask you this flrst, at some point durlng your

work on this case, dld you get an 1n1t1al subm1s31on of
items to work on'p

A Yes, I dld

Q At a subsequent poxnt dld you get some addltlonal

items to work on?.

A I dld.

Q  After you got the first 1tems did you reach

cenclus1ons and prepare a report?
A Yes, I did.
Q What were the additional items that came to you to

work on 1n the DNA lab?
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A The additional items received were the buccal _swabs
from Fmmie Coats and Jacqueline Sanders. '
Q Did you go through it all again, test it again

including testing the new items?

A Correct. I compared the profiles developed from

these new items to all of the items that I had previously
tested and reported: o | |

Q - And after the submission of the new items and your
work with the new itemé'ahd the comparisons again, did you
prepare a subsequent.report?‘ | '

A I did. ' |

Q Doeé theisubsequent report contain new stuff but all
of the findings that you made in the flrst report° ,

A Yes. The second.report includes, all of ‘the tests and
findings: . . S EXE o

Q Was there —- other than the addition of=inforhatioh,
in the.second report wae'there aﬁy change-in the findinés‘

as to the 1tems that vyou actually tested when you did the

" first report°

;A_ No, there was not.,

Q Concernlng ‘the swabs taken from the Hl—pOlnt pistol,
you said a minute -ago you developed DNA proflles from

those swabs. What kind of profile -~ not whose but what
kind of proflle did you develop from any or all of those

" swabs?
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- TESTIMONY OF CATHERINE'LEISX.
A From-each set of swabs I developed‘a-mixture} just
meaning that there was DNA from more than one.individual

on each swab.

Q All right. Did you determine -="let me just ask you

this' kind of p01nt blank, did you determine whether there

| on. that. plstol'>

was excluded as a possible

contributor to all of the DNA obtalned from the pistol.

Q : . Were:you able to reach any conclu31on about whether

there was any DNA from.Ms Coats from the swabs on- the

plstol°

A - Ms. Coats was also excluded as a p0531ble contrlbutor ‘

to those 1tems \ o

Q How about Ms. Sanders, same questlon° _

An Ms. Sanders was also excluded as a p0531ble
contrlbutor. 4 .

Q How about Anthony Carter?

Ail Mr. Carter was excluded as a possrble contrlbutor
Q How about Marico Stevens?

A . Marlco Stevens could not be excluded as a pOSSlble

minoxr contrlbutor-to the nuxture that I developed from the

swab™ from the under—guard of the Hi-point.’
0 Now, typlcally if you == I don't know 1f it's
accurate to say you get a match, I don't know if y'all use

that termlnology, but .if you get results hypothetically in
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a circumstance where you compare two DNA profiles and you

say they're a match, do you normally express that in some

terms or probability? ZAnd if you do I want you to explain

that to the jury.

A We-do. When we use thewterm.match'it.means a

situation where there is a single source profile developed

- from an item meaning there's only an indication from one

contributor. In a case where we have a mlxture and
there's more than one person present, if we have what we
call a major contrlbutor, meanlng one individual left more
DNA than the others, then we can use essentlally u31ng the
1nten81ty of a 81gnal to pull out their proflle. If T
have a proflle from a major contrlbutor I can treat that
llke a 81ngle source and compare it to an 1ndlv1dual If'
we. can match to a 31ngle source proflle or a major '
contrlbutor, ‘we then can do what we call a match statlstlc
g;v1hg a probabllltles that that randomly selected person
would hate'that DNA.profile.

0 Again, hypothetically‘if you're in_here on some other

case, some other place.and it's what you could consider a

match, what kind of‘number are you talkihg about on the

probability?~
A It depends on the profile. Typically on a single
source profile on a match statement we would have

statistics in one in several trillion, one in several

+
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:qulntllllon

Q How many people live on the earth? _
A -Our current population is approximately seven:
billion.

Q Now, tell us what your conclusion was concerning

-~ Marico Stevens when you . compared the DNA.proflle developed
“from his buccal swabs to the DNA,proflles you developed

from the swabs off the plStOl tell the jury what you
concluded: about that :
A In regards to the DNA.proflle developed from the swab

“from the trlgger guard there were at least three

1nd1v1duals contrlbutlng to- that 1tem " The major

- . contributor to that item was an unldent;fied female

;hdividual, Marico Stevens camnot be excluded as.a

possible minor contributor to that mixture. The DNA

_probability -— or excuse me, the probability. of randomly

- selecting an}unrelatednindividualAwhOrcouldjhave-

contributed to this mixture is approximately one,id 65.

0 Sixty-five with no zeros.

A Correct, just 65. - '
j Q ' If there were 65 people,in,this room righthnow, that

statistic means what in relation to those 65 people in
this room hypothetically?
A  Typically it basically means that out of

- approximately 65 people you would expect one person to be
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a potential contributor to this mixture.

Q In your opinion as an expert in forensic DNA -
analysis, -is that statistic, one in 65 in this case
significant? o ‘ '

A - We.generate statistics like this just to 'give a
weight to the statement, so to say that someone cannot be
excluded would be something different with a stat of one
to 65 versus a stat of 65 million or billion. It just
means if you randomly'selected‘a peféon and developed
their profile and compared it to the evidence thex,
probabilityithat they would.beaincluded is apéroxinately
one in 65, it just gives weight‘to that inclusion

statement.

somebody - hypothetically again assuming that you know
stebedy has handled the gun and assuming that_you,getl |
buceal swabs from that person and develop a DNA.profile
from thaﬁ person and you take swabs ffom the gun, are you
always going to flnd that person s DNA on the gun?

4A You won't necessarlly always develop that

1nd1v1dual's proflle Agaln, it would depend on how many
times they handled the weapon, exactly how they handled it
in relation to where it was swabbed and the other people
that handied‘it,Ahad it been wiped down between when they

handled it and when it was tested. There are quite a few
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TESTIMONY OF CATHERINE LEISY
things that go into it.
Q Is there any significance to the time the‘weapon was

fired in relation to the time the weapon was recovered?
A As far as developing DNA.profiles it would depend
more on again how many people had handled.it during that

time, had,it_been”wiped down;:- washed clean, things like

‘that. A six day difference, that time frame wouldn't

. necessarily have a big impact, it. would be more on how the

gun was handled and how it was treated in that time

Q - You told us a minute ago about SLED item number 18

_ wthh was a swab from' I think inside the trigger guard, is

that where that one was7 .

A Yes, sir.

- Q@ Tell'me about what you found on the other two swabs

W

on that gun.

‘A The DNA.profiles that were developed from the swab
'from the handgrips: and- the swab: from the backside of the

Hi-pOint are mixtures of at least two indiv1duals, and
Marico Stevens is excluded as. a possible contributor to

those two sets of mixtures

Q ¢ Well, were all of the other people that you had

profiles for also excluded7 :
A . Yes, they were.
O - Tell me about the final swab, SLED item 20. Did you:

refer to them together?
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A T did. ,It's basically the same conclusion for the
two.

0 Did you generate a report? Again, we talked about
this a minute ago, did you generate a final report which
‘included all of the items that you worked with? :
‘A Yes, sir, I did.
Was it the one dated Rugust 24th of 20107

That's correct.

Is that a copy of your report?

SO ¥ O

Yes, it is. -
MR. BARFIELD: Your Hénor,‘at this time I would offer
a copy of this repoft as the next Exhibit. ‘
MR. LIFSEY} No objection.
THE COURT: Okay. |
(The répbrt was offered as State's 94.)-
| MR. BARFIELD:. Thankiyoﬁ, ﬁa‘am.‘ Answer anything
Mr. Lifsey has; g ‘ |
CROSS EXAMINATIQN
" BY MR. LIFSEY: |
0 So T guess'ﬁhe'bottom line to all of this is you
examined two items significant to evidence, is that
correct, the blood and the gun?
A Correct, swabs collected from the car and collected
from the gun. (
0] 2and of course as to the blood,'the blood is from the
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victim which certainly wouldn't be surprising at all if
somebody is hurt and shot that they would bleed and that
would be their blood, right? ‘

A Based on theé incident report it wésn‘t an unexpected

‘result, no, sir.

0 And as to the gun what we know definitively I guess
is that you raised and:got enough material to devglop a

DNA profile, correct? ‘

A Correct.. | _

Q.- And we know wi£h0u£ any.doﬁ££Aﬁha£ éhét DNA profile
could not have.come from Anthony Cartér. |

A Correct. Mr. Carter is éxclpded as‘a:possible

_contributor to the swabs from the gun.
Q. And we do not know that Mr. Stevens cannot be -— we

do not know that Mr.,StevensAdid not contribute to the

» sample taken from the trigger guard, right?

A Correct. I did not exclude Mr. Stevens. _

MR. LIFSEY: Thank you. I don't have any othér
questions. - '

. MR.‘BARFIELD: Nothing else from Ms. Léisy. I would

ask thét Shé be excuséd, _ ) o

THE COURT: Yoﬁimay be dismissed. Soclicitor, it has
only been an hour but four witnessesvis about all the
jurors can handle. Don't talk about the case, jurors.

(The jury left the courtroom and a recess was taken.)
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THE COURT: Okay. Are we ready?

MR. BARFIELD: State is ready.

MR. LIFSEY: Yes, sir.

(The jury returned to the courtroom. )

MR. BARFIELD: State callerichelle Eichenmiller.
The witness, MICHELLE EICHENMILLER, was -first duly
sworn and testified as follows, onf

' DIRECT EXAMINATION — *°

BY MR. BARFIELD:

0
A

Q
A

State your name, please ma’am.
My name is Michelle Eichenmiller.
And Ms. Eiéhenmiller, by whom are you employed?

The South Carolina Law Enforcement ‘Division commonly

known as SLED 1n the foren31c lab."

Q

What department w1th1n the foren81c lab are you

a831gned to?

= O R A O

I work in the firearms department.

. How long have you been employed by SIED?

_ It has been five and a half years.

What do you do in the firearms depaftment for ‘SLED?

My primary duties are to evaluate fired evidence or

fired anmmnltlon cormponents and the flrearms that could

have fired them, there is also other dutles related to

that such as serial number restoration or weapons

destruction.
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Q Have you been called upon to testify in the courts of
the State of South Carolina previously as an expert
witness-and qualified as such in firearms examination and

identification?

A . Yes, i have.

MR. -BARFTELD: Your Horor, at this time I would offer

Ms. Eichenmiller as an expert in firearms identification

and —— examination and identification.

MR. LIFSEY: Without objection.
 THE COURT: Okay. L
Q I'm going to show you some stuff . in just a little

bit; but tell the jury what a semiautomatic pistol is.

‘A A semiautomatic pistol is a pistol that'reqﬁirés a

pull of the trigger'for each-bﬁllet to be fired, it will

‘keep firing until there's nothing left in the magazine.

It has a magazihe'that you load with cartridges, put it

.into the magazine rack\ahd it will load the first round

into the chamber, at this.point it’s.ready to fire. As
soon as you pull_thevtriggefﬂthe,bullet will exit the
b@rrel} the slide will slide back( the cartridge case gets
kicked:outito:;hevside,and~then the next cartridge in the
magazine Qill load. It uées the energy of recoil to do
all of thét métion.

Q ‘ Whatris a cartridge, a complete cartridge? What's’a

cartridge?
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A A cartridge is a complete package of amunition. It
has the case which holds the gunpowder and it has a primer
in it, then it has the bullet which is the part that comes

out it to go down the barrel.

0 What is the cartridge case?

A The case is basically the container that holds

-everything together.

Q Is there,somethlngrthat'is in some bullets, I gueas,
in some cartridges, is there scmething called a jacket?

A Yes. Some bullets are jacketed, that means they have
a covering over their core which is more llkely lead.
Lead is pretty soft, so they need somethlng t6 hold the
lead in and to stay together better.

Q. What is a common materlal that a jacket is

manufactured from'>

A The most common is copper, ‘some of brass, you could
also have steel jacketed bullets.

Q - . If you have a jacketed bullet, descrlbe the '
potentlalltles when that bullet is fired. What haﬁpens tc
the stuff? | !

A Okay. When a bullet ls'flred if it contacts ,.
something hard it is entirely possible that the bullet
could break apart, you could end up with two or more
pleces such'as the core and the ﬁacket. The jacket will

come off when’it hits something hard, the core will keep
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going because it still has momentum,

Q Okay. Typlcally descrlbe the manufacture and.

'characterlstlcs of a barrel of 'a semiautomatic plstol.

A 'Okay A semiautomatic pistol is manufactured with
rifling, that rifling is just determlned by the '
manufacturer, .. it depends on.how many, which is the number
of lands and grooveeAthey would like to put- in it and the

width of those lands”and grooves and the direction of

- twist. -This helps the bullet, it gives it:stability and

accuracy as. it travels down the'barrelrand out the bore so

At will contact 1t s target.

Q And what are lands and grooves’P

A The lands and.grooves are cut-in the barrel. It's

like a quarterback when he throws the football, you want

T it to be a tlght splral so- this rifling gives a tlght

‘ splral

Q Are there unlque characterlstlcs typlcally of. the

interlor of barrels of semiautomatic pistols other ‘than

" the lands and_grooVes-that'are intentionally manufactured.

into them?
A No. ;Lande and grooves are basically the class

characteristics that could be particular to a large number

~ of items. The unique individual characteristics are put

there not intentionally but when the barrel is

manufactured, depends on the machining that's done, it



NN N NN R R R e B T
GO s W N R O v 0y s Wy RO

o ® < o s W N

521
| ‘ 540
TESTIMONY OF MICHELLE EICHENMILLER

could be that the metal wasn't as hard in certain areas so
little pieces were torn out. - These little imperfections
in the barrel is what makes my job p0331ble. I evaluate
these 1mperfectlons to show up on the bullet as scratches
and I see if they look the same as test spec1mens that I
fired out.of the same flrearm

Q Bullet, again the pilece that ccmes out, the ultimate
prOJectlle, is it possible for the barrel to leave
markings. on the bullet° '

A Yes. .

Q  Is it possible for the barrel to'leaVe markings on ,

the jacket?

' A Yes.

Q Does the-barrel leave — does the‘barrel leave-any~

marklngs on the cartrldge case°

A The barrel doesn't leave marks on the cartrldge case,

that would be the rest of the flrearm

Q All right. Does the rest of the flrearm leave marks
on a cartridge case? ‘

A Yes. The slide and the breach space Wlll actually
leave marks on the cartridge space as. well.

Q When you have ballistics ev1dence ~— assume you have

a firearm, assume you have bullets, assume you have

‘jackets or jacket fragments and assume’ you have cartrldge

cases, are you able to examine those and perhaps reach
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some conclusion?
A Yes, ‘we are in most cases.
Q I'm going to show. you some stuff.  State's Exhibit

Number 2 for identification at this point, it's in a box,

- it has got some othervpackaging around it, it has been

cleared, you do whateveraexamination~you:need‘toAdo of the
item or the packaging and T will ask if you know what it
‘vBefore you do that let me ask you this: . Did. you get
called upon to make some examlnatlon of some. ev1dence
submitted to the SLED lab from the’ Lancaster County
Sheriff's. Offlce Wthh SLED aSSlgned lab number L—O49027

A Yes, 0104902.
Q' L104902. Can you tell me what all of that stuff is?

A . Normally when. I get evidence I will take pictures of

1t and I mark 1t w1th my item number, my 1n1tlal and lab

*number, so I m.maklng sure that that 1s what is in here

still. It is still in my heat-sealed bag so I know this

- is the evidence that I looked at.

Q | Is that evidence that you looked at in connection -

- with this case°

A. Yes._;<

0 And generally how is that piece of evidence

descrlbed what is 1t9

A It's a semlautomatlc plStOl, it's a Hi-point .

manufacturer
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Q And the caliber°

A .40 caliber.

Q0  All rignt. Put it back in the box and we will talk
more'aboﬁt that in a minute. T'm going to sequentially
handryOu some other things'and ask you the same question.

I'11 hand”you State's Exhibit 75 for identification. Can

‘you look at that and tell me if you know what it is?
‘A Yes. This was my item four; it's a fired —-

0 How is that item four described?

A It's a fired ouliet jacket fragment.
0 And is it any further described about recovery

location in any of the paber&ork that you.have with the

item or in your" notes°»"

A I believe oI the 1ntake document it describes where

lt was collected from

0 And do you have that available to you or —

A -I do. This is from the passenger 's side floorboard.
Q  All right.  I'm handing you State's Exhibit Number 80

for identification purposes. Are you familiar with that?

'A  This is my SLED item number five which is listed on

the intake document as a copper fragment from.the seat
cushion of headrest on the back of the seat.

Q- And can you tell, is that item number actually two
different pieces?

A Tt is.

523



524

" a bullet fragment from the driveway at

. one found at

: : - 543
TESTIMONY OF MICHELLE EICHENMILLER

Q0 I'm handing you State's Exhibit Number 74 for

identification. Can you tell us what ‘that is?

. A " This was SLED item number seven which is also a fired

- bullet jacket fragment deScribe on ‘the intake document as

Q .. I'm showing you State's Exhibit NUmber 77 for
identification. Can you tell me if you know what that' is?
A This is my item eight, which is a lead core fragment
described in our evidence‘intake'dbcumeht.as a lead from |

under the spare tlre in the trunk.

0 And flnally I‘m_show1ng you State S Exhlblt Number 11

for 1dent1flcatlon purposes which has several thlngs in .

'it. Can you tell me what that stuff 159
‘A ThisAis actually my 1tems number 22 through 24, it's

three fired .40 callber cartridge. cases  They were just

described as number~onevf0und at & again number

¥ .nd nuiber three found at

Q - Did you. do work - in the SLED 1ab concernlng all of

these: 1tems9

(.A oI dld,

MR. BARFIELD: Your Honor, at this time I would offer

these numbered -items for identificatioh as State's

.'Exhibits.

(The items were received as State's 74, 75,77, 80.)
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THE .COURT: Okay. Except for one which we marked as'a -

Court's Exhibit because it's not going back.

MR. BARFTELD: Yes, sir. ‘We have some pictures, ‘
though, that s.fine. o ‘ '
0 Ms. Elchenmlller, when you get a flrearm -— we'll"
just talk about this case —- when you got this pistol,
SLED item number 21 I believe it is, State's —- Court's
Exhibit Number 4, do you —- and you had stuff to work with,

it against, do you 1nmedlately Jjust start checklng the

stuff against the'pistol Or do you do something with the‘
pistol? | - " ' S

A We do a lot of forensic documentation {I'normally .
take pictures of the outside contalner and the 1n51de of .
the contalner, what the qun looked llke when I got it in
case I need to know that for later I document on forms,
I take a lot of notes about it, I check it for safety,then
T will go in and test fire it in our bullet recovery tank,
that way I knowkthat the items_that come out of it, the -
ammunition'components are actually of it and I will '
evaluate those‘adainst any evidence that we received.

Q Are you concerned‘about whether the pistol works
safely, number one, and operates properly, number two, -
before you start working with 1t°

A~ Absolutely. For my own safety and my coworkers'’ we

check it and make sure it works properly, if it doesn t

525
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work properly we are capable of repairing it if necessary,
and then aléb‘for safety to see if the safeties worked at
the fime when I got it. o

0 When‘you got this pistol, Court's Exhibit Number 4,

did you check it out to make sure it was wbrking safely

and operating properly?

‘A Yes, I did.

0 And was it?

A It was. .' o
fIQ Dld y 'all have to do any repalrs, make any —— did you‘

- have .to do any repairs,. do -any manlpulatlons to get it to

be usable for you in testlng?

A 'MayMlieheck my-hoﬁes? I don't think so. Everything

funétiened broﬁerly.

Q You test fire it. When you do comparlsons, are you

' d01ng comparlsons - what are you comparlng to what when

‘ you do comparlsons°

A -+ When I do camparlsons Iwill take the fired cartrldge

" cases that I recovered, the test specmmens and T will

compare them to any ev1dence that's submltted My primary.

,1nstrument is a comparison mlcroscope,vlt s basically two

microscopes with a binocular eye piece that I can see.both

items that are on each stage at one time. I can
manipulate them separately, turn them, twist them, change

the lighting so I can see all of the marks and then I
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determine if the marks are consistent to both the test and
the evidence. |

0 So are you comparing the submitted evidence,'for
examplé the jacket fragment to a bullet that you actually
yourself fired through tﬁe'gUH to see if they‘have the

same markings?

'A. Yes.

0 Did you do that with the item submitted to you and

- this firearm in this case?

A Yes, I did.

0 I'm going to ask yéu item by item ébout some things.
First of all, did you compare -— well, you said you test
fire a bullet into'a water tank.

A Yes. | 7 |

Q When you do,that’do you générate a fired cartridge
case? o ‘

A Yes.

0] Do you'use the fired bullet that went into the water
tank for comparison? |

A Yes.

Q Do you use the fired cartridge case that was left in

the gun when the bullet got fired into the water tank for

comparison?

A Yes, I did.
Q Did you examine State's Exhibit 11, which you
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identified as the three .40 caliber fired cartridge cases,

did you examine them and compare them to fired test

- specimen fired cartridge cases for State's Exhibit

- Number -- Court's Exhibit Number 4, the .40 caliber

pistol? . . _ N

A I did. |

Q Did you reach any conclﬁsion about whether those
carﬁridge cases were fired by that gun? “

A Yes. All three of those cartridge casings were fired

by that pistol.

A  No. .. )

Q Did ybu examine State's Eghibit'75lwhich you
idéntified as SLED item numbér four,‘jacket fragment from
the paésenger floor;>did you compare~thét item to test..

specimen fired bullets that you generated out of shooting

this pistol?

A -~ I dids

Q Did you reach any conclﬁsions?fv

A I did;"SLED item four, the fired bullet jacket
fragment, was fired by item 21 pistol. . - .

Q  Same question' concerning item —- State's Exhibit 80,
which you I think testified was SLED item number five
which is actually two lead fragments, or two pieces of

fragment, did you compare those two items individually to
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your test fired specimens in this case?

A I did. SIED item five was actually two fired bullet
jacket fragments, one had no marks of value so we couldn't

determine anything about that one, but the other was fired

by that pistol.

Q No question about it?

A No question. .

O  State's Exhibit Number 74, which I think you
1dent1f1ed as SLED item number seven, the jacket fragment

i j did you compare that to your test
fired specimens from the Court's Exhibit 4 pistol? N

A Yes, I did.

Q Did y6u reach any conclusion about that?

A_* Yes, I did. That fired bullet jacket fragment was

also fired by the item 21 plStOl.

Q Any question about that?
'A.a No. M

0 = State's Exhibit 77 T think you identified as SLED
item.number‘eight,‘a lead fragment from the trunk, were
you able to do anything about that piece of metnl?

A No, I wasn't. There weren't ény’marks'of value so it
was unsuitable for identification.

Q Did you generate a.report as a result of your .
comparisons of these items?

A I did. ' ;
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Is it dated July 8th of 20107
"~ Yes.

Is that a copy of your report? -

It»appears it's a copy of my report.

MR. BAREIELD:"At this time I offer the report as a
State's Exhibit. -

MR.—LIFSEY: No objection.

THE COURT: -Okay. -
"(The_report'was received as State's 95.)

MR; BARFIELD: Thank you, ma'am,,anewer anything

“Mr. Lifsey has.

A " CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. LIFSEY: ' .
Q »MJuSt‘briefly.i Just so I've got it straight, are
these the shell casings that you matched to the gﬁn?

‘A . Yes.

Q This is State's 11 which, of course, you haven't been

here but -we've been talking about it a lot in this trial

- is*that 1tem, and ba51cally then all you're able to say is

that the shell casings from this came from this gun, were
fired from thlS gun; is that correct?:.

A That's correct

Q And obv1ously.th1s may sound erazy but you don't know
anything about where these were recovered particularly, do

you? .
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A No, I don't.
) '.And.you don't know what condltlons or anythlng they
Awére kept in prior to you getting them.
A Correct. '
Q. And you don t know the 01rcumstances of -the use of
this gun.because you're not an investigator and you don't
go out there, right?
A Correct.
Q You haven't interviewed witnesses and talked to them
about: whether the shooting was justified or not, do you?
A  No, T haven't. We just receive the evidence. |
Q You just make the decision based on your analysis
these were fired from this. |
A Yes. A . .
MR, LIFSEY: I don‘t~have;any further quéstiohs.‘
MR. BARFIELD: That's all-for NB.«Eichenmiiler.
THE'COURT: ' You are free to go.
MR. BARFIELD: State calls Steven Marshal.

The witness}'STEVEN MARSHALL, was first duly sworn and

testified as follows, on:
DIRECT EXEMINATION .
BY MR. BARFIELD: o
0 State your name, pleasé, sir.
A Steven Marshall
Q Mr. Marshall, were you back 1n.May of 2010 an

531
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1  investigation with'the' Lancaster County Sheriff's Office?
2 A Yes, I was.: | "
3 Q Are you working glsewhere now?
4 A  Yes, I am.
5 O  Did you get involved on May 3rd of 2010 with the
‘6. investigation.of the shooting death .of [l '
7 A Yes, I did.
8 Q Did YOu gb out that ni"ght?.‘
9 A I can't recall if I'we.ﬁt out that night.
10 Q  That's fine. .N_ow, _were you working on May 4th,
11 daytime May 4th of 20107 |
120 A Yes. B
13 0 Did you meet a young man by the name Qf Anthony
14 Rodriekus Carﬁer on that date? |
15 A  Yes, I did. , |
16 Q ~ Where did you and Mr. Carter meet?
17 A - The drﬁg task force on Highway 9 in“Lancaster County.
18 O  Is that an office or sort of ‘a satellite office of
19 - the. Lancaster County Sheriff's Office?:
20 A Yes, it is. | o ‘
.21 Q. Was Mr. C_;irtéf —— about what time of day or night was
,22 it that you first met Anthény Carter? ‘
23 A Ten or 10:30 —
24 Q 'That's fine.

N
[ I
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Q Well, let me just hand you a couple of things. I'm
ébing to hand you. two pieces of paper, just look at them
for a minute,- don't tell me anything about them. But do
you know what they are? '

A Yes. .

o) Do you see anything -~ everything you need to see off -
the first one first of all, daﬁes and times and all that
kind of stuff? And then look at the second one, dates and.
times.f ‘ |

A Ckay. .

0  All right. Do you know —- when you saw Mr. Carter
was he under arrest? | N e

No. |

When yé& saw R&ﬂ Carter was he in custody?

‘No. - - B ) E

When you saw Mr. Carter was he being detained?

No.

o » o B o @

Do you know how Mr. Carter got to thé'dﬁug task force
office? | ( | o
A . I think Officer Eféthhémpsoh had pickéd Mr. Carﬁer
up at his residence or just picked‘hiﬁ up somewhere, but
he came volﬁntarily; '

Q, What was-your ?urpose in being in Mr. Carter's
éresehce that morning? First of all, do you know about

what time it was on May 4th?
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w N

It was about 10:00 a.m.
Q What was your purpose in being 3_11 his- presence’>
A

To- conduct an 1nterv1ew as to what ‘had happened on

Q At ‘-,tha-t time when this all started, was Mr. Carter

-suspected of having done anything illegal in .'éOnheétion

with the death of Jaylen Elaine Jackson?.

A iNo. - i -

Q Did anybody partlclpate with you in the 1nterv1ew
with Mr, Carter on May 4th of 20109

A . Yes, ,»_Of.flcer Thompson and Officer McLemore, and I
had known Officer Crump was involved, I'm not sure if it
was the 4th or the next interyiew on the 6th. B

Q  Whether v.y.ou say ‘l;hompson, you're talking about Fred

: Thompson?

A Fred Thompson

Q And McLemore was Ryan McLemore'>

. A Ryan.Mo_Lemore-. - S '
0 Was there' an interview that occurred for some period

- of time: before Miranda warnlngs?

LA Yes. » ‘

.0 During that- period of time again Was ‘Carter under
arrest? | | |

A No.

Q Was he bei’né detained?
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No.

Was he a suspect up until at some point later on?
~No. He was not a suspect at that time.

All right. Did y'all talk? |

Yes.

© B 0 F O P

Before T forget this, what we're describing —- what
you're describing right now, was it audio and video

recorded?

uA. Yes, it was.

‘ Q And did y'all preserve the audio and video recordlng

of the interview?
A Yes, we dld

0 I'm g01ng to hand you somethlng and ask you if you

_can identify what -that is?

A . It looks llke a copy of the interview from 5/4~ of

2010.
0 For Anthony Carter?

A Anthony Carter, yes.

Q ' Have you had occasion or opportunity -to look at thié,

all of it, part of it, subsequent to it being made?

- A Yes.
Q  Does the audio/video essentially speak for itself?
A Yes. | ‘

0] Is there any cutoff of the tape where stuff was

happening and the tape wasn't running as far as you know?
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A No.
0 Is it a cont;nuons tape from May 4th?
A Yes. a |
Q And do you recall from the review of _'this thing how

long the May 4th tape is?

A .Two and a half to. three hours: maybe

¢} At some pomt durmg your :Lnterv1ew w1th Mr. Carter
did you read him his Miranda warnings?

A Yes. | | )

0 I'm going to show you a piece of paper and ask you if .

you can identify it. Do you know what that is?

A  Yes. This is a copy of the Miranda warnings.
. Q For what subject for who? '

A Anthony Carter..

‘Q ~ From what date?,

A - 5/4 of 2010, -

Q Is .there wrltlng on, the form'> :

A Yes. . _ _ :
Q Whose hand is on the form, who has written on‘tnat
fom? o o L

A ' Anthony Carter, myself and I believe that s Fred
~ Thompson's signature.

0  Is that form dated?

A Yes.

o) Does it have a time —- what's the ‘date?
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5/4/2010.
Does it have a time on it?
Yes, it does.
What is the time?.
10:30 a.m. '
Was thatréome‘time after the interview had been going
on for a little while?  | .
A - Yes.
0 Did you read Mr. Carter the rights that are listed on
that form? | | | .
A Yes, I did.
Q And.generally speaking what Were you teliing him? T
don't want-you to read the whole form -- well, let me aék
you - | S |
| MR. BARFIELD: Ybur Honor, at thisAtiﬁe_i“wogid offer
ﬁhe Miranda warnings as a State's exhibit in lieu of being
a Court;s exhibit. ’ | ’
MR. LIFSEY: No objection.
THE--COURT: All right, sir.
'(Theiﬁiranda form was received as State's 96;)
Q  All right. Mr. Marshall, without réading'the whole
thing, generally speaking what didﬂéhis form tell
Mr. Carter his rights were generally speaking wifhout
verbatim? |

A Basically he had the right to remain silent, if he

537
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did not wish to talk to us he didn't have to.
o) Did it talk to a right to have a lawyer?
A Yes, sir. ‘
Q0  What does the form say?
A You have the right to have a lawyer and have him
present w1th him before being questloned "If you cannot

afford to hlre a lawyer one w1ll be app01nted for you
before questlonlng if you WlSh "

0 .Did you read that form, all' of that, to Mr. Carter oni
the video during the 1nterv1ew° "

A Yes, sir, I dld

Q Dld you ask.hlm.when you read those rlghts whether he

4

understood those things?

A Yes, I did.

Q Did you do that right by right, check off by check

off?

A I don't recall — if it wasn't right by‘right it was

- at the end I_asked him if he understood his rights.‘
Q  Did he ihdicate to you that he understood what the
. rights wete_that you read? |
: Ai);>Yea;~he did. | ‘
e h Did he do something on the form to indicate that he
knew what the rights wete that had been read to him?

A He initialed by each right and signed at the bottom.

Q. Did you determine how old Mr. Carter was? I'm not
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asking you how old he was but did you get some sense about
how old he was? ' |

A We determined he was an adult, yes.

0 Did you determine what his educational background
waé?” o | \ '

A Yes, I did. |

Q What was it?

A T think he said he finished the 10th grade and had a
GED. - | o
Q . Did you ask Mr. Carter if he understbod all of thoée
rights that you read him? ’
A Yes, I did.-

Q  Did he tell you that he did or did not?

A He téld me that he did.

Q Didlyou have any difficulty cbﬁmﬂhicéting wiéh

Mr. Carter? Did the two of y'all have any difficulty

. communicating with each other, meaning did he appear to

have any problems with the words or phrases and the

thoughts you were conveying?

A No.

0 Did you have any difficulty understanding‘the'words
or thoughts that he appeared to be conveying?

A No. . | ‘.

Q ‘Did he ask you any questions about his rights?

A No. '

539
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Q - Did he say or do anything to indicate to you that he
did not understand what his rights were?

A No.

Q0 Did he after you read him those rights give up those

rights or waive those rights and continﬁe to answer
questions and talk to y'all about this matter?
A Yes, he did.

0 Wére any of the three of you officers wearing

uniforms or were y'all in plain clothes?

A . We were in plain clothes.

0 _Did Y'all have badges or identification and firearms
on you? - |

A Yes, we did. . :

Q During all of the e&ents ofuMay,4thzin'this.video
recorded intervieW).was Mr. Carter a£ any tiﬁe restrained
in any manner? | o o

A . .No, he wasn t.

' Q Did Mr. Carter at any time durlng the May 4th

1nterv¢ew ask for anythlng, examples: Make ‘a phone

call — flrst of all, do you know if he had a phone with
him? o o

A He had a cellphone with him,

Q From watching the video and your memory, I guess,
were there any times when Mr. Carter was in that room on

May éth when the tape was still running and no police
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officer was in there with him?

A Yes, I believe so.

Q Do you recall whether he used his telephone or
manipulated his phone at all during any of that process?
A He did use his phone,ulndonYt“remembei if it was teit
messaging or actual call but he did use his phone.

O  Again, did he ask for anything like -- do you
remenber if he had anything to eat or drink with him on
May 4th? .

A  He did have a bottle of water which we provided for

Did he ask for anything'else to eat or drink?-
No.

Did he ask to go to the bathroom?

- No. | . |
Did he ask to go smoke a cigarette or anything?
No.
Did he ask for'anything?

No.

Did he at any time —- did anybody promise him

‘anything, anybody that participatedfih the May 4th

interview promise him anything to get him to talk to
y'all? ' |

A No.

Q Did anybody threaten him or do anything that you take
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as coercion to get him to talk to y'all on the May 4th
interview?

A No.

0 At any time during the May 4th interview did he say
that he did not want to talk anymore?

A No. .. =+ il : A

Q- Did:he say that.he wanted,to have a lawyer present?

A No. S o o .
- Q Did he say that he wanted to talk.to a lawyer before

he ‘talked to you anymore?

A No.

Q Did he ever on that day say —— get up and attempt to
leave?
A No.

Q0  Was he ever that day during this interview in -

custody?
A No.
..Q° In your mind at any time.that day was he not free to.

Jleave during this interview process?

A: No. 4

0O : Go ahead'and'ask'y6u~this,-whqpfwaé Mr. Carter's .
status with you when‘he walked; in there aﬁd.when y'all
first met on May 4th, what was his status with you?:

A A witness, or possible witness.

Q At some point you read him his Miranda warnings.
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A Yes.

Q  Why?

A - I was called out to épeak - |

Q ‘Doh't tell me what anybody else said, but‘generally
speaking, don’t.quote>anybody. And I'll stop you'if I
need to;

A 'i was advised that Mr. Carter had a weapon during the

o Bl T et TR R

time of this incident on [RSes s

o

Q  Is that the point at which you read him his Miranda
warnings?
A Yes.

Q. Did y'all make that clear to him at some point after

. the Miranda warnings that you thought he'd had a weapon?

A Yes.
Q All right. .Let'S~skipmovef"to another day, another

time. - I'm going to hand ybu another piece-of paper marked

" .Court's Exhibit Number 2‘right now. Tell me if you know

what that is. .

A  Yes, sir, it's a Miranda warnings rights.

Q Is it the same form?
A Yes.
0 I mean a different -— used again but is it the same

form that you would print. off your computer at the.
sheriff's office?

A Yes.
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Q No difference in the print wording on the form?
A . No difference. . '
Q.. And for whom does that form -- to whom tioes that form
apply? - o |
A Anthony Carter. ‘
Q° And what is ‘the date on that form?
A 5/6 of 2010. | -
o} What is the tJ.me on that form'?
A 3 48 p.n.
Q -l Is there handwrltlng on that form'?
A Yes. |
Q Whose name 1is on that form?
A My s1gnature, Anthony Carter's signature and also
Carl Crump's s:r_gnature
‘Q And Carl Crump is also with the sheriff's office?
A Yes. B | | "
MR BARFIELD Your Honor, at this time I would offer
Court's Exhibit ‘Number 2 as a State's EXthlt ' '
‘MR. LIFSEY: Subject to the motz_ons in lunlne, Judge.
THE QOURT{'~A¢1 right. h
{The Miranda form was received as State's 97.)
0 Mr. Marshall, same sort of series of questions about
this. Did you interview Anthony Carter again on May 6th
of 20107

A Yes, I did.
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0 Did others participate in that interview with you?

‘A . Officer Clark Crump. )

Q And was Fred Thompson in and out or there part of the
time perhaps? | | ;

A Dbug, I don't recall.

0 That's fine. Again, {:ell me what time that Miranda

- warning was done on that?.

A 3:48 p.m.

Q Was Mr. Carter's status different at 3:48 p.m. on
10

May 6th than it had been on May 4th?

A Yés, he was' in custody at.that time.

Q All r’ight.“ We don't need to worJ;:y about what, but
had he been arrested. ‘ ' ‘

A Yes. ‘.

Q Was theré an audio/video recording made of the
interview on May 6th?

A Yes.

-Q °  Have youl‘had a chan¢e to look at some or all of it

subject to its ‘creation?
A Yes. . |
Q. Is this disc it?

ya\ Yes, it is.

Q When you met with Mr. Carter on May 6th did you read
him his Miranda warnings?

A Yes, I did.



kOOOQ‘O\.LﬂnthH

e e e
> W N P o

547
565
TESTIMONY OF STEVEN MERSHALL

Q Is. it that last exhibit I handed you, I don't’
remember its number, 97 maybe7

A Nlnety~seven

o Is that the Miranda warning fonn that you went over
with Mr. Carter that day? ' |

A Yes, it is.

Q Again, did you read that verbatim to him?

2 Yes, I did.

0) And did you ask him if he understood eaéh'of‘those
rights? | ) {

A Yes, I did. )

Q  Were they the samé rights-thét_ybu had reédﬁhim.two
tdays,éatlier? o o ' - |

A Yes. o - -

NN NN N R
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A
Q
A Yes.
Q
A
Q

0 Did he indicate that he did understand eéach of those

rights?

Yes.

Had you again determined how old he was roughly7

,Dld you reafflrnlwhat hlS educatlonal background was'>
Yes, I did. B

Did he tell that you he undetstood each of those
rights? ‘

A Yes.

Q Did you and he have any difficulty communicating on
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May .6th of 20102 -

A No. | '

Q' Did he ask you any questions about his. rights?

A - No. . |

Q  Did he say‘ or do anythiag to make you believ‘e"he did
not imderstand his rights?

A No. | ‘

Q  Did he waive his tights,beth to remain aiient and to
have a lawyer- and agree to be interviewed and answer
questiens? | | o

A Yes ’ he did

Q I might have asked you ‘this a minute ago, was he

,actually in the same room on May 6th that the v1deo shows

him being in on May- 4th'>
Yes, he was.
Probably sz,ttlng in the same: cha:Lr'P

Probably.

Approximately two hours.

A

Q

A .

Q- About how long dld that interview last? ”
Q

' Weré there periods -~ do you recall whether there

were. any periods.of t.tme in that interview'.where officers -

were out of the room and he was in the room by hmself"
A: I don't recall I believe maybe on occasions
possibly.

0 Was he wearing his clothes or Lancaster County
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clothes? ' '
A Lancaster County clothes.
Q And describe his clothing.
A Orange jump suit.
Q Was he restrained in some fashion?
A Yes, he was.
Q How was he restrained?
A Leg shackles and a belly chain. :
Q Lég shackles meaning what, could he walk?
A Yes, he éould walk but not very long strides.
Q And belly chain meaning what? |
A Basically .'Ai_t"S a belfc around the waist that had

handcuffs on each side so his hands were kind of down to

J

his side. . ‘
| Q‘ ' Did he have the ability to move his Hands soine?

A Som'e,fyés.- P N .

Q Enough to write bhis name and sign Athipgs?

A Yes. | |
0] And while i'm askincj' you about that, did he si’cjn the
Miranda form from May '6th; ‘State's Exhibit 97?2 '
A Yes, he did. S

0 Did you and I think Fred Thompson and again Clark"
Crump s;‘.gn that? ,

A Clark Crutﬁp signed it. A _

0 At any point during the interview on May 6th, was he

549
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partially unrestrained?

A Yes.

Q And what part of'him.was unrestrained?. -

A One of his hands was unrestrained.

- Q ~WaS'tha£-because y'all wanted to do that?

A Yes. . . | |

Q Did he at.any time during‘thét.interview on May 6th
asked to be unrestrained? . ] |

A No. ‘ _’ | N

'O Did he ever sayf “This is tﬁo’tiéhtion my wrist,_‘

~loosen it up," for example?

A No. ' A

Q  Did he ever asgiyou’to take any of the'restraints
off? | |

A No. , . ) .
Q Waé the clothing worn by-the officers Qngphe May 6ﬁh

interview similar to the clothing worn with y'éll -- the

- officers on May 4th?
A Yes.

Qi Everybédy had guhs_and badges?

A  Yes. _

Q° Did Mr. Carter on May 6th ask for anything; something-
to drink, something to eét, bathroom break, a nap, a B.C.
Powder for a headache, use the telephone? Did he make any

requests of y'all during the interview on May 6th that you
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recall?

A No.

Q Now, the tapes will speak for themselves obviously in

a little bit, but other than the conversation that is on
the tapes, were there any promises'made to Carter to get
him to tell-y'all stuff about the matter that we're all
here for this week? |

A No. -

Q Did anybody make any threats to Carter 6ther-than

whatever is on the tape that‘speaks for itself, but was

_ there any overt threat made to Carter to get him to talk

to y'all?
A No.
Q- Coercion other than whatever the tape shoWslthat

Jépééké for itself to get Cértér to talk to y'all?

A No.

Q Was there ever -- in either interview was thefe ever
any violence during either of those interviews?

A No. R

0 Was there any slamming of doors orﬁtossing of chairs

_or banging on tables or anything?

A No.
o) Do you recall whether voiceé got raised at some point
during one or both of these interviews?

A At some point I believe maybe voices got raised but
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1 nothing yelling or anything, but maybe a little loud.
2.0 Did Mr. Carter talk to you for the duration of the
3 . interview on May 6th or did he comply with your request to
4 interview him on May 6th? ‘
5 A Yes. ' ‘ o
6 Q - Did he at any time during that irterview say..—— other
7 than whatever the tape shéws did he:say, "I don't want to
8 talk anymore?" B :
.9 A No.o .
100 Q  Did he ever say, "I want to call a lawyer?"
11 A  No. | ’,2 '“ 7 '
12 Q Did he ever say, "Get me up out Qf:heré'and-take e
13 back to'tﬁé detention center?™ “
14 A  No.. |
15 .d Wéll, let me do thié; have you still got the other
16 copies? ' |
‘17 A Yes.
418' Q With you or'somewhere-else?
19 A . No, they're at“myxhouse.
20 .Q  That's fine. _
21 MR. BARFIEID: . Your Honor, at -this time I would ask to
22 mark the two discs asLState's‘exhibits for identification.
23‘ Well, I will go ahead and move them in, T gﬁess.
24 MR. LIFSEY: Subject to my prior motion in limine,
25 Judge.
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THE COURT:  All right.
(The two DVD's were received as State's 98 and 99.)
MR. BARFIELD: That's éll, Mr. Marshall, piease answer
anything Mr. Lifsey has.. ‘ |
 CROSS EXEMINATION
BY MR. BARFIELD:

O  Mr. Marshall, you were a police officer a long time,

"~ correct?

A Yes.

Q And interviewed a lot opreople suspected of crimes
during that time; is. that right? |

B Yes. | |

Q  It's not unusual for you to interview people and have
people.be.a litﬁle nefﬁous-toEtalk to y&ﬁ;<not unusual at
A 1 agree.

Q And not unusual that when you talk to people

sometimes ybu have to talk to them awhile; isn't that

right?
A It's not unusual. .
0 It's not unusual that sometimes it takes awhile to

get out ——- to get to the truth of what happened, that's
not unusual, is it? L
A That's not unusual.

0 And sometimes ‘it takes multiple interviews to get to
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the truth of what happened, that's not unusual at all.

A That's not unusual.

MR. LIFSEY: I don't have' any further questions.
MR. BARFIELD: Nothing else from this witness, I don't
wanﬁ to excuse him just yet.
The witness, FREDERICK THOMPSON, was: first:duly sworn
and testified'as follows, on:
| © DIRECT . EXAMINATION
BY MR, BARFIELD:
~ State your name, please.
My name is Frederick Thompson.

Mr. Thompson, by whom are you ‘employed?

0

A

0

A | The Léncaster County Sheriff;s-Office.

Q .. And whét do you do for the'sheriff'sAoffice?

A I'm an investigator.

O How long have you been an investigator with the

sheriff's office? ..

A For ten years. ;-

Q How long have you been emploYed by the Sheriff's )

‘office?

A . .Since December of 1999.

Q .Did you get.inVolvéd;in‘theginvestigation of the .

" shooting death of [BINES | which occurred on May 3rd

of 20102
A.V Yes, sir, I did.
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Q Did you start work. on'the case that night or the next
day?

A The next day. -

Q Did you on May 4th of 2010 participate in an
1nterv1ew of Anthony Rodriekus Carter?

A Yes, 31r, I did.

Q Do you -- did you have any background —- lhad you been
briefed sort -of on the case before you started 'working
directly on the investigation that morning?

A *Yeis,u sir, we did. |

Q And did you know that Anthony Carter .was s‘omebody who

‘had been around -- been involved in some way?

A Yes, su:.

Q Dld you see Anthony Carter- the nlght of May 3rd at

A  No, sir, I did not.

‘ Q Did 'you see him on theAmorning‘ of May 4th?

_A Yes, sir, I did.

yQ What was Anthony Carter s status with you as an
investigator when you first had contact with him on the

morning of May 4th? .What was he to the sheriff's office

concerning this case?
A He was a witness.
0 Dld you -— where did you . first see Anthony Carter?

A I went to his res:.dence on Lvnwood Drive.



556

TN N NN RN R e B S e s g
OB W N B O W ® 3 o U i W N = O

© ® N o 0w N
- B G T~ N O BN = @)

T OB zO‘I‘D'-'zO ]

‘ 574
TESTIMONY OF FREDERICK THOMPSON

Did you talk to hrm.there°

Briefly.

Did you tell him why you were there?

'Yes, 31r e S \
And what did you tell him? |
I asked him if he would come to the sherlff's offlce‘

. and speak with us about his knowledge of the case.
. Q Dld he agree to°

A Yes, 51r, he did.

Q Did you do anything, threaten hlm or coerce him in

4 any way to get him to come to the sherlff's offlce?

A No, sir.

K

0 Was there any reluctance on his part to come to the

sherlff's offlce'>

i& No, sir. s I thlnk he 1ndlcated that he knew we were

going to come out and speak with hlm.lr .

Q Did you drive him to the sheriff's offlce in your
police car?

Yes, sir. -

Was}it-an unmarked car?

Yes, sir. t

"I think you drive an Explerer;

Yes; air.

Where did you go -- specifically where did you go?

I brought him back to our drug task force address,
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the address is [

Yes, sir.

Did you know it was going to be audio/video recorded?
Yes, sir. - - S e
Did y'all make an audio or vidéo'reéording?,

Yes, sir, I did. -

Have you watched some or all of that tape?

- Yes, sir, ‘I have.

O P O PO ® O B O

‘At any time during the proceedings of the making and
recording of the statement on May 4th, was Anthony Carter
under arrest? o -

No, sir, he was not.

Q .Was he detained? ] f’.

A Yo, sie. IR

Q Was héiever during the iriterview not ffee.fo leave? -
A No, sir. - | |

Q ﬁid you have any difficulty underéﬁanéing

Mr. Carter's —- did you have any-tpouble.communicating:

with Mr. Carter?

A No, -sir, I don't think so. Sometimes he would speak

low but we were. all in the same room, we.could still kind
of hear him.
o) Did he appear to have any trouble understanding your

words and phrases and thoughté?‘

and did you Know that he was going.to be interviewed? - -

557
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TESTIMONY OF FREDERICK THOMPSON

A No, sir.

- Q Did he ever ask you ‘any-'questions about his Miranda

warnings?
A - Right after he was read his Miranda warning he

immediately asked if he was under arrest.

Q ‘And. what did you tell him2. ..

A . We told him he was not..

Qo Was that. true’P |

A That was correct.

Q | - 'Did, that‘ remain true. throughout that intervi‘e_w?
A . Yes. - \ |

Q - Any other questlons he asked about his eranda

warm.ngs"

A ' None that I’ can remember. o
Q  Did he ever say or do. anythlng that made you think he

~did not understand what his Miranda warnings were? i

?

A No, s;Lr. .

'Q ’ D_'Ld he appear to be durlng the May 4th 1nterv1ew in

any- state .of: dlscomfort'?

A No, sir.

“}fQ . Dld he have any scars,. marks, visible 1n3ur1es or

appear to have any pain or. dlscomfort’?
A No, sir. A
Q Did he ever —- do you recall" whether he had his.

telephone durmg this interview?
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'TESTIMONY OF FREDERICK THOMPSON
A He did, it was in his lefﬁ pooket._
Q Do you recall from watching the tape whether he ever
used the telephone during the interview?
A He dld sent a few text messages and even spoke to
someone by phone. IR |
Q .. Were there tlmes when he was in the interview room
and y'all weren't in there? 9 |
A | That is correct. '
Q Did he ever ask for anything like -- well, do you
recall him having anything to eat or drink durlng the

interview?

A He was given a bottle of water.

0 " Did he ever ask for anythlng else to drink or
anythlng ‘to eat'P * - '
Did not. .
Cigareﬁte?
Did not. .
Bathroom break?
. No, sir. -
Smoke oreak or headache powder or anything?
- No, sir; he didn't ask for anything else. .
Anybody promlse him anythlng on May 4th to get him to
talk?

A No, sir.

0 Anybody threaten him or coerce him on Mey-4th to get
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him to talk?
A No, sir.
Q T think it's May 4th, I'm going to go ahead and ask

you this: Are :you aware on- May 4th at some p01nt he said,

‘"I've answered your questlons, I'm ready to go," or

- something like. that?

Yes, sir.

Have you seen that?

Was . that when you were talklng to hlm?

_Yes, sir. ’

Oof course; you've seen the tape now,'did you tenember
that happening. ' 1 7 ~ o
A  Not at the time. ‘After watching the video I do now
realize that he did say that “ | o |
Q  Did he -- did y'all continue to talk after he sald

‘that9

A Yes, sir.

,Q, Did he ever protest continuing to talk to you after

y'all sald that?
A No, sir. L thlnk rlght after he sald that he

..;ccntlnued to talk

Q And again when he said that was he under arrest?
A No, sif, he was not.

Q- Was he in custody?
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No, sir.
Was he being detained?

No, sir.

(ORI o B

If he would have gotten up and said, "I'm breaking
camp, take me home,™ could hé have left?
A . Yes, sir, he could have.

Q Thank you. Well, let me backup. Were you present at

. least during. -- are you aware there was an interview with

Mr. Carter on May 6th, tWo days;latér?

A Yes, sir.. | '

Q Were you present and did you participate in somé
fashion in that interview? -

A I didn't participate in-that interview. I was there

at thé office kind of in and out. because they were working

on some‘othér=thingé} Iwwasfawéié'that he was there and

interviewed but I didn't initially interview him at that

thme.

Q Do you recall whether you actually were in the room
during any of that?

A I walked by the room.

o) And I can't remember from wétching?the tapes, put did
you ever interact with Mr.. Carter for the May 6th
interview?

A Maybe spoke to him in passing but we didn't hold a

conversation.
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0 The same series of questions that I asked you about

‘May 4th apply to May 6th, but did he at any time reach out

to you and say, "I need something, I want something, I
want a lawyer," or anYthing like that?
A No, sir, not to me.-

Q  Was it your understandlng on May 6th that he was in

[

'jall arrested in’ custody?

A Yes, sir.- _
. MR. BAREIELD:- Thank you. Answer anything Mr. Lifsey
has. . ' '

MR. LIFSEY: T don't think I have anything for

Mr. Thompson.

THE COURT You can step down, -
The w1tness, RYaN. MCLEMORE, was first duly sworn and
testlfled as follows, on:
- DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. BARFIELD: .
Statelyour'hame, please.
Ryaﬁ McLemore.
Agent MCLemore, by whom.are you employed°
o Lancaster County Sherlff's Office.
>What do you do for the sherlff's offlce°
I'm a lieutenant, I supervise the narcotics division
at the sheriff's office. '

Q How long have you been with the sheriff's office?
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'TESTTMONY OF RYAN MCLEMORE
A I have been with the sheriff's office fifteen years.
Q How long have you béen Supervisor for narcotics?
A Three years.
Q Did you participate, assist in the -investigation of

Jaylen

B

thé shooting death of 4l which occurred on
May 3rd of 20102

A Yes, I did.

Q Did you go out that hight or did you start up the
next morning? _' ' ‘

A - I started up the next morﬂing, I didn't go out there
that night, -

0] Did you meet a fellow named Anthony Rodriekus Carter
the next morningé ” ;

A Yes, I did.

Q. "Wére you prééeht and did'you.ﬁarticipété in his
interview at the drug task force office on May 4th

starting some time I think maybe 9:30 or so in the -

'morning?
A Yes, sir, I did.

Q Did you directly engage in questions and answers with

Mr. Carter from time to time?
A I did. ‘
Q Was Steven Marshall and Fred Thompson also -

participating in the interview?

A Yes, they were.

563
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1.0 Let me ask you just some general questions. Was

2 Carter in custody? | ‘

3 A No, sir, he was not.

4 Q - Was he under arrest?

5 A .. No, sir, he was not.-

6 Q Was he detained? |

7 A No, sir.
'8 Q . Was he :e_strained?

9 A No, sir. |
10 © At any time during the interview process was vhe free
11. to leave? o |
12 A Yes, he was. |
13 0 Did ybﬁ becofne a'v}a:re that he got his Miranda warnings
14 some time during that interview? - A
15 A I did. | | |
16 Q Did his status in your mind change just because he
17 ‘got Miranda warni'ngs?"-;.:.Was he free, under arrest or
18 = anything after that, do you knbw? |
19 A I wasn't present at the time.
20 Q 'That's fine. . | |
21 A- I had left the' interview by that time.
22 Q At any time when you were participating 1n the
23 interview, did Carter appear to be in any discomfort?
24 A  No, sir. '
25 Q Did he ever ask for anYthing? )
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'TESTIMONY OF RYAN MCLEMORE

No, -sir.

Creature comforts?

Right.

Didn't ask for anything?

No, sir.

Did he ever in your presence say, "I don't want to
anymore?"

No, sir.

Did he ever in your bresence say; "I want a lawyer?"

No, sir.

"Did he ever invoke his Miranda -— his Miranda and

constitutional rights during your presence with him?

A No, sir, he didn‘t
Q Anybody promlse hlm.anythlng to get thltO talk on
.May 4th?. ' '
A No, sir.
Q Anybody coerce hlm or threaten him to get him to talk
on May 4th°
A No, 31r. ’

MR. BARFIEID: Thank you. ZAnswer anything Mr. Lifsey
has. '

MR. LIFSEY: I don't haveAénything for this witnese."

THE COURT: Free to step down.
The w1tness, CLARK CRUMP, was first duly sworn and

testified as follows, on:

565
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TESTIMONY OF CLARK CRUMP

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. BARFIELD:

Q State your name.

A Clark Crump.

Q Mr. Crump, by whom are ydu employed?

A Lancaster County Sheriff's Office.:

Q  How long have you been with the sheriff's office?
A Fourtéen ‘years ‘. | ,

Q. What do' you do with the sheriff's office?

A T m a criminal 1nvest1gator | -

0 - Is that what you ‘were with the sheriff's office in
'May of: 20102

A That's correct.

Q- Did.you participate in the investigation in the

shodting death of LM
of 20107

which occurred on May 3rd

‘A .. Yes, sir. -

Q Did you start your investigatioﬁ on the night of :
May 3rd or mornying of May 4th or some time later?

A’ Some:+ t:uﬁe later.

7 Q - Did you have anythlng to do with Anthony Rodrlekus

Carter concernlng this case prior to May 6th of 20107
A No, sir. ,
Q Did ‘you have any contact with him prior to May 6th?

A No, sir.
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Did you have any contact with Anthony Rodriekus

Carter on May 6th of 20107

A Yes, I did.
Q  -Where did that contact occur°
A At our Lancaster County Drug Task Force on' Number g,
Q °  Was the purpose of that contact to conduct an
interview? , |
A fes, sir.
Q Were you there?
A Yes, sir. .
" Q Was Steven Marshall there?
A Yes, 31r V
| Q  Was Fred Thompson around or maybe in and out?
A I don't recall.hlm,belng in the building.
Q: That's fine. Was Cartef undef arrest? |
A Yes. | ". |
Q Was he dressed out in detention center clothing?
A Yes, sir.
Q Was ho'restrained?
A Yes, sir. ‘
0 At some p01nt durlng the lnteerew was there any

change ‘in his restraint?

A

I believe his right hand was taken lose from the

chair.

0

Did he ever ask — was that because y{ail initiated

- 967
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TESTIMONY OF CLARK CRUMP %8
that or he asked for it? '
A We initiated it and allowed him to do it to
demonstrate something.
Q Did.hé at any other time —- how long was that
~ihte;vieW) May 6tﬁ,'about‘how long, do-:you know?
A- Appréximately aq~hour'and ahalf.: «
Q0 Is there dead alr time when there isn't any
interviewing going on'but the tape is still ruﬁhing?
A Yesyi' : “ |
Q." So the interview is longer than an hour?
gé. Probably. .
0 Is there an(y time duriﬁg—that interview rt‘hat Carter

_said, "Unchain me,>fﬁee me, let my hands‘loésé; unhook my

legs, " or anything-like that?
A No, sir. A _ w ,
Q Did he appear to be in any physical ai$c§mfort? Did
he have any.injuriesg=' | '

A No,<sir; A‘I ‘

0 Did he complain of any pain?

A No, sir.

Nolm -bid he.ever'ask during that intervieW,for,any}h

creature comforté like a drink of water,lsomethingﬁto eat,
bathroom break, something for a headache, anything? '
A No, sir. ‘ . -

0 Did he at any time during that interview invoke his
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TESTIMONY OF CLARK CRUMP

constitutional and.ﬁﬁranda rights; number'one, did he ever
say, "I don't want to talk anymore?" =

A No, sir.

Q Did he ever say, "I want a lawyer before I decide to -
contlnue talk1ng°" |

A No, sir.

Q Did he say, "I want a lawyer for any purpose?“ -
. No, sir. -

0 vDid he ever just flat out say, "I'm.done, I'm,hot
going’ to.talk anymore?"

| No, eir.;

Did he talk?

Yes, sir. -

Did he -carry on a conversation for several hours? -
iYes, sir. . o '
Anybody promise. hlm.anythlng - well, the tape 1s

going to speak for itself. Did you interview hlm. are you

'doing-a good'bir of the interV1ew1ng yourself?

A Yes, sir.

Q Did you use techniques that you have been:trained«to '

" use while you are interviewing somebody?

A Yes, sir.
QO  And we mlght at some p01nt get into the dlfference
between an interview and interrogation. '

A Yes, sir.
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Were you trying to get him to give you information?

Q

A Yes, sif,;

0 Is it clear on the tape?

A Yes, sir. ' _

Q Did.yéu'proﬁise him.anything'to-get him to give’you
information? | |

A - No, ‘sir.:

Q - Did'you threaten him in any way to getvhim.tobgive

you -information?

A No, sir.

- Q Did you do anything to coerce him in &ny wa& other -

information? .

A No, sir.-

Q0 And I don't want you to say what he said, but did you

get information?

© A . Yes, sir..

MR. BARFIELD: Thank you. Answer anything Mr. Lifsey .

" has.

-~ MR. LIFSEY:. T don't have any questions for Officer

THE COURT: You méy‘step down. fhe,next thing I -
understand it is the tapé‘which is three’or four hours, I
don't know. But anyway, it is what it is it. 'Sb y'all be
back at 1:00 and we will start then.
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(The jury left the courtroom and a iunch bteak Was

Taken.)

THE COURT: Do you think you have got‘it under
control, Solicitor? |

MR. BARFTELD: I hope so, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Are you ready to roll?

" MR. BARFIELD:. Yes, sir, just one second.

(The jury returned“to the courtroom.)

' THE COURT: Okay. -

MR. BARFIELD Ybur Honor, at this time the State is
prepared to publlsh portlons of. the videotape interviews
that I introduced 1nto evidence as two State's exhibits, I
don't recall the numbers, they're segments and I'm going to
be. stopplng and startlng And T thlnk the clerk is g01ng
to tell the jurors somethlng about’ the ear pleces

(Break in proceedlngs )

>(At the " tlme the DVD was played. )

THE COURT. Okay. JUrors, we're g01ng to take a .
little break. :

(A recess was taken and the jury returned to the

Courtroom.) | | ‘

THE COURT: Okay. JUrots, they have eight minutes
left'on‘the first tape, about an. hour and 20 minutes on the
second’ tape T told them y'all are good for that much time
and we will finish for the day, but if somebody needs a
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break raise your hand and we're talking an hour and 35

minutes max. Okay.
(The,DVD resumed playing.)
MR. BARFIELD: We are done.
THE COURT: Y'all step up one second..

(A bench .conference was held.) .
TE&&WM&-Au;ﬁ@ﬁ.,mmmﬁ,ﬂmﬂsit‘AsI.
promised you today we Will gét it to you tomorrow, wonft be
late, don't know whethe£ it will — probably‘belbefore _
lunch thouéh probably, so don't talk about the case. We're
going to start back at 9:30. We've got to éo over a bunch
of thihgsy@ith the attofneys atﬁ9;00 so_wefll still finish

- it tombrrow. Have a good night. 9:30,'

(The jﬁry left the courtroom.) ‘
MR. BARFIELD: -I'm informed by Mr. Lifsey as to

‘indictment number 2009-GS-29-1167: which is a direct

indictment true billed.charging_énﬁhony Rodriekus Carter

with pbssession of a pistol by a person. convicted of a

crime of yioiencé, that Mr. Carter desires to plead guilty

' to that éharge and ——

THEACOURT: Nd,.fhat's,not the one -- oh, okay,
previougly convicted.A

MR. RARFIELD: .Yes, sir.

THE COURT: ékay. Mr: Carter; you doing ail right?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, sir. '
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THE COURT: 1I'll defer sentencing until the trial is
over on that charge. . But I will tell them that he pled to

that without telling them how much time it carries or

‘anything like that.

MR. LIFSEY: Yes, sir.
~ THE COURT: Now, what’ forms of verdict do y'all
anticipate submlttlng7

MR. LIFSEY: Well, obv1ously he is 1ndlcted for
ﬁurder, I would ask the Court to submit voluntary
manslaughtef, I wouldfask the Court to consider involuntary
mansiaughter’in addition to that, and I would like you to
charge self—defense and —-

THE COURT: Well, I have been reading, it looks like
under his testimony he is entitled to an involuntary, that
the shots weren't trying to hit anybody which that's the
way it looks if he actually shot standing by the car, but
that's charglng the elements of that.

MR. BARFIELD: .Can I,respond to that?

THE COURT: I will listen to yoﬁ on that.

MR, BARFIELD: I thlnk I understand you saying that he
trled to shoot —— that he shot into the ground and didn't
mean to shoot at anybody? _

THE COURT: I'm saying in the light most favorable to
him it's not an accident, though, he's reckless to

disregard shooting is involuntary.
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his own testimony was the saféty was on, that's what he
said one time. Another time he said they weren't trying to
hit anybody. ~° - 0 e wd

MR. BARFIELD: Are you charging voluntary
manélaughter? L

THE COURT: I have to charge!volunﬁary, returning
fire. Murder,‘voluntary, invoiuntary,:self+defense,

transferred intent on both of: them, transferred intent on

manslaughter, involuntary.
MR. BARFIELD: And accomplice liability, hand of one
is the hand of all?
THE:. COURT I'm.g01ng to listen to you tell me about
that, you know, tell me your theory on that.
* MR. BARFIELD: Well I don't want to do my: c1031ng
argument. ‘
' THE COURT: I know..:But you don't want me
intérrupting.you when you argue.
- MR. BARFIELD: No.  .Certainly there's testimony from
today that he provided the -- assuming the other guy shot

" the gun, he provided the gun that the other guy shot and

killed the baby and that to me is as close and as clear as

you can get accomplice liability. | 4
THE COURT: I'm not going to talk on the facts, I'm

going to charge hand of one, hand of all and that type
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MR.ABARFIELD: I'm going to argué with YOu juét a
minute. ‘As I recall the tape he wasn't successful in
firing the gun when he had it pointed at the ground, he
doesn't ever admit(to‘firing the gun so I.don't see how
there's accidental discharge of the gun because he doesn't -
ever admit firing the gun. , .

THE, COURT: .Hold it. Unfortunately he can make

inconsistent -statements and théjjury can bélieve what they

“want. Bt -one point he said nobody intended to shoot
10
11

anybody, later he did tie him down. TIf that's said and you
can certainly argue that, that it couldn't possibly be

involuntary becausé he tried to shoot, that's what he said

. at one point, at another time he said they were not trying

. to shoot anybody. - I mean, I hea;d that,"I don’t'knpw that

he said that from somebody so that's the only reason I'm

charging that. But you are right, you can certainly argue

- it‘can‘t possibly be involuntary.because the only reason he'

didn't shoot under his own testimony-he did that. But

again, I have to charge him on inconsistent statements and

they can believe any portibn'of his testimony.

MR. BARFIELD: ' Are you'saying you're going to-charge
involuntary'mansléughter?

THE COURT: Right. And ifm.saying you can argue it

can't possibly be involuntary because he tried to —- he

“intended to shoot and the only reason he didn't shoot under

575
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1 stuff, I'm not saying what you're saying;
2 MR. LIFSEY: I understand. I can't argue with your
. 3 reasoning on that.’

4 _ THE COURT: That's right: 'Now; thereﬂis.one thing

5 that's going to come up on self-defense maybe, I just need
6 to horse collar. That first thing about ‘without fault on
"7 bringing on the centroversy, you're talking about that day.
8 The fact that he owed them money does not negate that, that
9 doesn't make it — : ' '

10 MR. TIFSEY: T certainly intend to-argue without fault

11 dlfflculty applies with what is going on that night.

12 THE COURT: What was 901ng on that day I'm going to
13, tell the jury that he owed them money doesn't enter into
'14' that equatlon _ o | . ) |

15 MR. LIFSEY: And T think whethér or not whatever

16 happened in the street is a fact question for the-jury to

17 decide, whether that amounts to —-

18 THE_COURT: Well, it _had to be —- who_is the

19 aggressor, who started it and so forth. - And I don't get

20 into this but yon can argue that it ~- which is what he

21 suggestee'in opening, it does not matter who fired the

22 first shot if he is waiking'there with a gun and they see

23 it they're entitled to *—:because I am going to charge them

24 you don't have to wait until somebody gets the drop on you,

25 they don't have to wait either if they see a qun and
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think —- so that's -- it .goes both ways. But I'm not going
to tell the jury that,. that's jury argumen£. All I'm going
to tell them if you have the right to shoot you don't have
to wait, you.can’éhbot.first in a self-defense scenario.
MR. BARFIELD Yes, sir.
‘THE COURT. Other than that I don't know anythlng
And, of course, I'm going to tell them on .your accomplice
deal, I'm not going to talk about accomplice, I will say
hand of'bne, hand of all, that's just staﬁdaraLstuff that

_-I'm.going'tell them on that; nothing out of the ordinary.

And, of course,'on self—defense I W1ll tell them.about

‘prior difficulties which is from hlS view p01nt but not

fact specific, just run over that, that is basically it.

-Of course if y'all want any specific charges you can hand

them up but the general charge probably will cover

everything. . ,
MR. BARFIELD: If either one of us finds anything else

to briefly argué with you about in the morhihg concerning

what we have covered so. far .this afternoon —.

MR. LIFSEY: And I assume —- you said this. in your

‘opening,*you're:givingathe current self—defense,and:they

have -to dlsprove it beyond a reasonable doubt.
THE COURT: Yeah, ;easonable doubt. I m.only going to
say hesitate to act and firmly convinced on reasonable

doubt, I'm not going into all of that stuff about you can
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doubt the sun rising and all of that, I'm not going to get
into all of that. N “

MR. LIFSEY: T was just asking the current state. You
don't oharge the old self-defense is an affirmative :
oefenSe;' | « : | “

THE COURT: No. I will say — I'm only going to
tell — I don't change what we used to say that the
defendant must show and I will say that the evidence must
demonstrate ‘

MR. BARFTELD: Beyond a reésoﬂable doubt. _

THE COURT The State has to prove beyond a reasonable
doubt he dld not act in self- defense.' If ev1dence of
self-defense was present and here is what eviderice must’
conv1nce you of before self-defense is appllcable.

MR. LIFSEY T think that's the law, I just wanted to

»clarlfy that..

THE COURT: I thlnk that's ba81cally 1t. If y 'all

come—up-with anything I__w_],,],_],_be happyto Cha'r‘Q’P 1‘1‘ the

18-

19

20 -

21
22
23
24
25

charge is long enough and the facts are convoluted enough,
Anything else? | | o -

MR. BARFIELD: No, sir.

(Court adjourned for the evening and resumed on

Thursday, November 10, 2011.)

THE COURT: Okay. I take it the State has to rest in
front of the jury, you doﬁ't have anythiog‘else to do.
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MR. BARFIELID: I want to, if you will allow me to,
argue against your charing involuntaty manslaughter.

THE COURT: You can do that all you want to.

MR. BARFIEID: T handed Mr. Davis a series of .cases

‘which deal with involuntary manslaughter. The -evidenceé in

"the case == I'm not absolutely certain of what the facts

are that the Court~determines warrant the‘involuntafy

Emahslaughter charge and I don't know if you want.@e to ask.

you that. ‘ _
THE COURT Ba51cally there is testlmony that any A

"shootlng from.that 31de was. almed at anybody, that's all.‘

MR BARFIELD Can I argue that.shots.lh the air, can
I argue - | | o »
© THE COURT . Yod can. But let me explain. .Itfs a
Weakened involuntary cbviously, i have -tried so many of
‘these things. I tried'one”where a gﬁy'followed his wife

all of the way - from a convenlence store: to a-trailer and

.-3:00 in .the mornlng he sneaks through the: woods with a

loaded\¢45,«a guy.steps.out,hhe‘shoots,the potent;al lover .
right between the eyes and he says I was just shooting to
frighten hlm, T didn' t mean to-hit ‘him and they sald I .
should have charged 1nvoluntary - If you can overcome that,
flne, but that's what I'm looklng at. If there is any
evidence that it was unintentional I'm supposed to charge

that. And the cases you've handed up they charged it --
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- they reversed for not charging involuntary. I know yOu4

take language from that case and want to argue»it'bﬁt the
fact is they got.reversed for notAcharging'involuntary.

MR. BARFTEID: The ones I handed you the Courtvruled
that involuntary should not have been charged. And the.
Reeoe case ——:one of the cases that I?m‘looking at but —
let me make two statements to you. One is it is my |
recollection, Mr. Lifsey might'dieagree,ybut T listened to
the tapes again last night, it is my recollection -- it is
my interpretation from the clear langquage of Cérter'on-the
tapes that when.he says shots in~the,eir he'svtalking,ébout
the shots cdming toward him, I think that's clear. I doh't
think there' 8 any ev1dence that the shots fired from.the

Mallbu where the Chlld was kllled were 1nto the air. And I

can quote you - I nede a — sort of dld my own llttle

transcrlpt “Tn the flrst 1nterv1ew he sald he heard
about —-- and thlS is pretty much -

THE._COURT: All right We]] just_—- even assuming
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that is true he stlll gets 1nvoluntary because he's
shooting into the car. If they shot they shot into the
car, not towards people over there.’ They're not éhooting
at somebody, they re me551ng around pulling the trlgger

I'm not even con51der1ng charglng accident but, of course,

that would be out there too, he just didn't request that

50 ——
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“MR. -BARFIELD: Can I ask you about the Reece cCase?
I'm.sure‘that“you have looked at the Reece case?

' THE COURT: - You just’ handed it to me and I haven't
studied it, you know. . - A
' MR. BARFIELD: : The Reece case basically says. if you

are commlttlng a crime- which 1s not-a felony YOu are

‘perhaps entltled to-an 1nvoluntary charge, 1f you are

committing a crime which 1s\a felony' you're not. I believe

- there is evidence in this caSe that‘Carter was” committing
two felonles when this 1nc1dent happened One was he was

' p01nt1ng and presentlng a flrearm.whlch is pretty much on

point w1th the Reece case and that is a felony, he was also

in posse331on of a pistol by a person conv1cted of a crime

“of violence. I think if you're going to charge: 1nvoluntary

manslaughter I should be allowed to argue<to-the jury that

, 1t is not because he was commlttlng those two felonies. To,

do that I've got to present ev1dence, number one, . that he
has.the prlor convrctlon for the crlme of v1olence which
would make him —- hlS adm1331on on the tape would make him
gullty of - possession of a plStOl by a person convicted of a

cr1me.of,v1olenceﬁ and then I would need.to establish also -

~that he's,pled guilty to that charge and I would like to be

able to do that so that I could argue'those facts to the

THE COURT: Right. 2And you could easily haue done
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that and been there had he not already pled guilty but now
you can't do that. - ‘ ‘

MR. BARFTELD: But he was committing those crimes when -
this incident occurred, it's a .fact in the case.

THE COURT:. Ifmwnotzcharging,that.”AXoumcan argue that
he was pointing and presenting, I'1l say that pointing and
presenting is a crime, I'll read the statute to them.

MR. BARFIELD: Is there Some Way‘much like you are
going to deal with the absence.of the pistol charge, is
there some way that I can use that also without referring
to it as a record of a crime of violence? I think that —-

THE COURT: He's not convicted of that, but ——

MR. BARFiELD ~ Well, he pled to it yesterday.

THE COURT Walt a mlnute, p01nt1ng and presentlng he
did not. B ’ T T

MR. BARFIELD: Yes, sir, I understand that.

~

THE COURT You cannot get into that uniess he
testifies. If he testifies, of course, you can get 1nto
that. ‘

MR. BARFIELD' But there's evidence in the case,
though, that he presented a flrearm.to J. D. Hemphlll he
said he showed it to him when he got out there in the
street~with him. | |

THE COURT: I said I would read that statute to him.

MR.fBARFIELD:d I'mfsorry, okay: |
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THE COURT: What else do you want me to say?

MR. BARFIELD: I misunderstood you, I thought you_were
retracting that. '

THE COURT: I said he's not convicted of that and he’

- 'has not been charged with that but there is a statute that

says pointing and presenting is a felony and I'll read them
the elements also..

MR. BARFIELD: The other thing that I was talking

- about was the charge that he pled to yesterday.

THE COURT: I know,. and-that can't comé in now unless

‘ he testlfles. It could have if we would have read it off

to start w1th but we dldn t do that, we just sald

_posseSSLOn of a plstol

MR BARFIELD Yes, Slr.

© THE COURT Anythlng else?

-.MRZQBARFIELD-. That's alil.

" MR. LIFSEY: . I don't- have anythlng, Judge I will
tell you that my:client tells me he has made a dec131on not
to testify if you want to do that now so we don't have to .
send them back out. . | | o

- THE. COURT:.- Sure. Mr.'Carter;-you‘have'had all night
and had all week to think about it;,yqu understand again
there ate good reasons for testifying and good reasons for
not. Now, you do understand that if you testify they will

bring oﬁt your prior record, of course, I would tell the
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juty they couldn't consider that on the issue of guilt. It
would be something in front of the'jury about your

character and so forth which they don't have at this point.

.in front of them, do you understand that?.

THE DEFENDANT: -Yes, sir.
THE COURT: So with all of that knowledge and

‘recognizing that if you don't testify yourtattorney gets to

put up the argﬁment, is it your intent to go forward with -
testimony or not to present any evidence? | '

THE DEFENDANT: - Yes, sir, I understand.

MR. LIFSEY: He's asking you are we going to put up
any evidence? R

THE DEFENDANT: Oh, no, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. With that said.were y'all preparedb

to proceed w1th jury argument after the State rests?

MR. LIFSEY: Yes, sir. I need to formerly —— can I
make my motions?: S .

THE COURT' That's why I said nothing is going to
change, you can make your arguments nOwW. _

MR. LIFSEY: -Solicitor, are you 901ng to rest now? |

MR. BARFIEID: I am.. a |

MR. LIFSEY: Ail right. Judge,'I would move for a
directed verdict. I could cite State versus Dickey and I
would leave that matter to your discretion which is the

self-defense defense for the jury.

585
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THE COURT: In the light most favorable to the State

under the land of ‘one, hand of all situation he could be

‘guilty of various crimes.  All right.

MR. LIESEY: Thank you. . 7 ‘

THE COURT: One small thing, I didn't look it up but
involugtary is not-a crimeFOf violence, is it? |

MR. LIFSEY: No, sir. |

THE CQURT: So I have to tell them if they.finq him
guilty of that they can't find him guilty of the —- |

MR. BARFIELD: That's corréct;. Involuntary
manslaughter: is not'a violent crime. |

THE COURT: Everybody about.ready?

(The jtrykreturned to the courtroom.)

THE COURT: Okay; 

MR. BARFIELD: - Your Honox, the State rests.

THE COURT: Defense? | B

MR. LIESEY: The defense rests, Judge. . -

- - THE. COURT: Okay.,AJUrors,ﬁhere.is what is going to

“happen, you heard fhe'State say weJrest that doesn't mean
he's tired.or‘anything, that just means he's not going to

.put anymore evidence in. Okay. - At,thaproint the defense

is given an opportuhity to. present evidence, as you recall

the defense does not have to prove anything and the fact

that the defendant did’notitestify from the stand can't

even be considered by you on the issue of whether he
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committed a crime or not.\ Now;,here is what is going to
happen, the State is going to make an argument —— if you
don't put up any evidence -- if you put up any evidence the

State gets to argue first and last so there is some

. technical reason for not putting up evidence. Also what

you will consider now will be two indictments. At the
start of the trial there was an indictment that charged

Mr. Carter with posse531on of a weapon but at the
conclu51on of the trial yesterday after yvall left he just
pled-guilty to that charge,  pled guilty to possessing.” You
don't have to possess a weapon for any length.of time, you
can just have it, you know, and he testified that ‘he had’ 1t

at some p01nt so0 he just removed that . frcm your

‘con31deratlon and pled gullty to that charge The fact
that he pled gullty to that charge creates no inference of

guilt toward.hlm.on these other two charges as you just
forget that charge was ever there Now, this indictment
charges hlm,w1th.posse831on ~- he being Anthcny Carter —-
of a firearm or a knife during the'commiseion of a violent
crime, that's an add-on chargelfor Eentencing purposes if
you find a person guilty of ccmmitting a violent crime.
Okay. They 11 instruct you in a little blt if you don! t
find hlm.gullty of committing a violent crlme you're not
guilty of that and you wouldn't have to consider that.: If

an individual is engaged in the commission of a violent
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crime and has a‘weapon.he is guilty, if it is not a violent
crimef not guilty. -Now, this indictment charges Mr. Carter
with murder, on or around May -3rd of last year-it%alleges
that with malice aforethought killed and murdered Jaylen
Jackson by  shooting her with a handgun and she died as a

' direct result of that shooting. After the attorneys sum up

for youaI!anoing'to instruct.yOu on the law in some -
detail. Okay. Eut~basically when this person is charged
with-murder.there=are'other‘thingS'that the jury can -
con31der and T certalnly am going to amplify the

1nstructlons to. you at the end'that murder is the unlawful

jkllllng of one human being by another human being with

malice aforethought expressed or 1nferred The larger

-crime includes all smaller crimes that the person —— of
:lesser included offenses that the person could have been

. charged with arising out of the same action, so 1ncluded in
..the oharge of murderiwrll be.the. charge of.voluntary

wmanslaughter;3tOflcourse, you could find him guilty, but

I'm not sUggesting.you_dor~of~mUrder,»youhdon’t}get to

,4voluntar9'manslaughter and I will explain to you.

vfpresumptlon of innocence and burden of: proof and all of

that, and at the end. I told you at-the start murder is
killing somebody with malice aforethought, express or
inferred. Voluntary manslaughter is one human being

killing another human being without malice and in a sudden
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heat of passion upon sufficient legal provocation. Murder

is killing a person with malice, express oOr inferred,
manslaughter is killing somebody wlthout malice. And
intent to kill is present in both of those charges as a
third charge, a lesser charge 1nvoluntary manslaughter
Involuntary manslaughter is where a defendant unlawfully
and unlntentlonally killed a victim and at the time of the
killing occurred the defendant's conduct was crlmlnally
negligent, obv1ously it has no intent to kill. Criminal
negllgence is bas1cally engaglng in reckless disregard of

the safety of others. Beyond that at this point I'm not

"going to instruct you. Now, there are many factual

scenarios that have been presented to you, there were 1o
v1deo cameras out there as you gathered, so the. solicitor

1s 901ng to state the State S p031t10n to you 1n summatlon

in what we call 01031ng argument, I jUSt call it summatlon,

you don't get to talk back so summation is not really

argument. After the State does that, then the‘defense will

be able to make closing summation. to you also. If you can

listen to both of them you will listen to both of them and

“then take a break T'm just talking time wise, I'm not

puttlng any restrlctlons on them. I don't think they re
going to argue on and on but there are a lot of facts and
various scenarlos that we may need to address, there’ s.

actually more law than the average case which they'll

589
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probably address also. Okay. Soltcitor?

- MR. BARFIELD: TIf the Court please, Mr. Lifsey. I'm
just going to talk to you for a little while. - You came
here Monday and y0u~didn't know what: to expect. You've

beenhere now into your fourth day and you probably

'fcertainly didn‘t realize how difficult this is to be here

~and to be in the position and the role that you re in.

Everybody 1nvolved in thlS case has a role and a
respon31blllty and a.part-to play in 1t and the lawyers are

fixin' to flnlSh up ‘our roles and in a llttle bit the Judge

.is going to finish up his role and then we're going to drop

it on you. NObody, nobody takes llghtly the burden that
will be on you when you go back there in the jury room

later on and dellberate your verdlct Everybody

: apprecrates your attentlon durlng this trlal and everybody
appreciates, although maybe not voluntarlly, your belng
daway from your homes and your: families and your jobs and

: other thlngs you would,much rather. be d01ng, but you're

here and you're close to the end and some 1mportant stuff

is coming up and I ask you. just to stlck with us until we

Aget this thlng_through. I'm going to talk to you about a

~ lot of things, and it's awful hard to stand .up here and in

just a few ninutes put in a nutshell what y'all have been

‘listening to for over three days now but -that's what we are

supposed to be doing. What we say, what the lawyers say is
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not evidence in the case and our role at this p01nt is to
just Smely get up here and what we percelve the ev1dence
to be and point out things to you that we submit toyou are
1mportant, and certalnly we try to conv1nce you' one way or
the.other about thlngs 1n.thls case and that's what Ixn
g01ng to do. The Judge has kind of ds we've gone along
through this thlng told you sort of what your optlons are’
g01ng to be and I want to talk -about’ that for just a little
.b t. One thlng that I ask you to. remember —- I m.going to

ask you to do a couple of things —-VI'm.g01ng to ask’ you to

. do & lot of" thlngs -— but one thlng to remember I submit - 1s
that the only conclusion. you can reach at the end of‘thrs
thing'whatever your verdict is,’the only. cohclusion'you;can

reach 15 but for. what Anthony Rodrlekus Carter dld on
May 3rd of 2010 I"’ :

because’ of ‘him. However you get there —— and there are
oh01ce3‘—— however you get there the only conclu31on you

are going to be able to reach is that but: for what he dld

v1ct1m.1n this case, she's the vrctlm.of a murder charge.'
Thls mlght be hard -for you to do but I'm 901ng to ask you

to do this for awhile, at the rlsk of being 1naen51t1ve,

out of your mind for part of this

process.: Nobody, T will tell you straightéuleI'm

would be allve. She is dead'

591~
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straight-up here, nobody 1nvolved in thls case contends

But somebody

-did intend to kill‘SOmebody else, the guys across the

street. So donft get caught up from here on out in the

-‘facttthat'ngbody meantﬂtoﬂkill‘daylen,;itcdoesn’t'metter

that nobody’meant to kill Jaylen=-wThe questiOn is did .

-somebody mean to klll somebody and that 1s, 1n fact true

L-ln thls case I submlt So when T tell you to put Jaylen

out of your'mlnd that s the context Itm talklng about L t';«‘
me go ahead and talk about the legal concept that I' 3

Areferrlng to and 1t's called transferred 1ntent, and the

JUdge has already told you a llttle blt about this and 1t'
real 31mple, if I 1ntend.to flre a gun at somebody and

) . do —— and we'll talk: about 1ntent to klll somebody in a

llttle blt - but 1f I m.flrlng a gun at somebody and I m a

”bad shot or somebody walks ln front of- the gun and somebody
‘*that was not who I was - shootrng at gets kllled it doesn't

matter as to: the guilt or 1nnocence It doesn't matter

" that you shot and kllled somebody you weren't shootlng at.

A7That's what I mean when I say put Jaylen.a31de for part of

what your.. thlnklng is on, this case. Transferred lntent.

The 1ntent follows the bullet, thlnk of 1t that way 1€

"you fire that gun and that bullet comes: out the muzzle of

that gun and the intent follows that bullet wherever it
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strlkes, and in this case that bullet struck Jaylen
Jackson, it didn't get all of the way across the street to
- hit J. D. Hemphill or Beneco Ganson. It matters not that

] is the victim, it'matters not'that Jaylen

Jackson was not the intended- VlCtlm.aS to guilt or -
innocence -on murder and other charges that you'll con51der.
I told you at the beginning -- I think I'told you at the

beglnnlng of this case we're g01ng to tell you everythlng

W N U W N

we knew, the good bad and ugly and you heard a lot of
10 ugly. Everythlng I put up here came from people who knew
11 something'about lt, law enfercement and civilian witnesses
12 and there ain't no doubt that T put up a parade of rogues,
13 and certainly'the Judge isxgoing~to talk to ygu about
14 credlblllty and you can con81der peoples crrmlnal records
_lS ‘when you decrde whether you.belleve them.and that's why I~
16. asked them about their criminal records. -You can cons1der
17 relatlonshlps between people when you dec1de whether you re
18 g01ng to belleve 1t You can cons;der why or whether one
19 witness would have some reason to shade it or not tell it
20::all or to point the finger at somebody'else and tell the '
él truth, you can consrder all of that, we gave it to you Tike
22 we got it. What did we give you? We gave you this ‘
23 documentary of a story, a true story that‘occurred on

24

25 witnesses what happened and you heard from witness'

2 on May 3rd of 2010, and you heard from
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background about the area. You heard basieally a culture
of drinking and drugs and partying and guns and fighting,
that's what you heard because that's the culture that this

.case arose out of, and I'm not-tryingﬁto“sﬁgar.éoat;that,

we've got what we've got. But' think hard about ‘all of that

“when you're deliberatiﬁg your verdict back there. Another

thing I.ask you to do -- there is a lot of law in this

case, you've'got a lot of choices, there are a lot of"

© charges to conisider and sae defenses to consider, and ‘do

that, ‘the Judge is g01ng to tell you all about that. But

.one thlng the ~- probably the blggest thing that the State
“asks you to do as you sit here this morning and get ready

to go back there and dec1de thls case is use your COImmorn .

sense. Technlcalltles, legal terms, that's all to be

. con31dered but use your common sense What makes sense to
::me about thlS case, that's what you ask yourself when
‘you re back there de01d1ng what- to do w1th 1t. Of course,
-you~always.have the option —;Aoneaof»your options is not
*;guilty of anything; elearly not guilty of anything is one

foflyout options. There‘s:a“firearms'charge in this case

which isnpesseSSion of?a'pistol—during the commission of a
vielent.erime. If you find.Carter guilty of something that
the Judge tells you is a violent crime then I submit to you
that he's guilty of possession of that pistol, and Iyneed
not say anything really further about that. You heard




I ST T ST T e v e R R S S
B S N e S G P I B N I R U S
Y

© © N O W NP

615
CLOSING ARGUMENTS

yesterday Mr. Carter tell you he had a plStOl that's all I
need to. say about that. But the primary charges in the
case, the indicted charge is murder. The Judge has told
you, "I'm going to let you consider voluntary
manslaughter,” he's told you, "I'm going to let you

consider involuntary manslaughter,™ and he is going to

“charge you on self-defense, so I want to talk about those a

little bit and plug some facts into them probably as I go.
What's murder? Murder is the unlawful killing of another
person with malice aforethonghtreitner expressed or
inferred, he will definefthose terms to youtlater,‘I'll
tell you a little bit about what is malice. It's hatred,

WickedneSS, ill will toward another person, intent to do

,bodlly harm toward another person. You can’ express it by

saying, “I m.g01ng to shoot you,"-or you can express‘lt by .

saying I would submlt as Anthony Carter did when he gets
out with that. gun and walks across the street, "What you
gonna do now?" You can also 1nfer it by using a weapon, a

pistol, a Hi~point .40 ‘caliber semlautomatlc pistol. You

. can find malice in Carter's use of that pistol when'he~

- hopped out of that car and walked across the street.

Malice aforethought. What does aforethought‘mean? That
means before. That malice, that wickedness, that intent to
do what is fixin' to happen has to. come about some time

before it happens, but it doesn't have to be three weeks

595
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before it happens, it doesn't have to be three days before
it-happens, it can-be immediately before it happens. It
cari be when he is half way across the street} it can be
when he is opening'the door to get out:of the car. It”éan

be when he is halfivay between his house ahd‘Emmie Coats'

4 house on~thé way to take'her~homer~or¢it-cbuld:haﬁeﬂbeenv

Countryside MObile-Homes or the day his brother got his

" ‘butt whipped if all of that happened. . That's what '

aforethoughtvmeans. We have malice} clearly we héve

malice. I would submit to you we have malice from arming

_himself with that gun, we have malice from getting out of
the car-anq approaching his antagoniéts if*you believe
'that's'what that's all about. Before even seeing if J. D.
Hgmphili>had a gun;‘ali of this stuff, nobody gnows,fwe'

weren't there. Y'all.decide, maybe - it matters, maybe it
doesn;t.‘ But assume; give hHim the benefit of that, assume
that J. D. Hemphill had a.gun, he didri't-know that when he
pulled up in that Yard, he didn't know\that when he- took
that gﬁh from Marico Stevens, he didn't know that when he
gét out of the car with that gun or walked*acrdss‘the
street by J..D. Hemphill; he initiated all;bf that-by~‘
arming himself. That's malice. He got out and he poiﬁted
that gun, if you.believe Beneco Ganson he pointed that gun
at J. D. Hemphill and he said, "What you gonna do now?"
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This is what Ganson said. Pointing a gun at Heémphill,
"What you gonna to do now? I ought to shoot you." That's
malice, ladies and gentlemen, he started it. RAgain,
remember throughout he started.it; "What's voluntaryj
manslaughter? The unlawful killing of another person
without malice in a sudden heat of passion upon sufficient
legal provocation. That's a mouthful. The Judge is going
to break all of that down for you in a little bit and tell
yonlabout it. I submit to you this is not -manslaughter,

not voluntary manslaughter, it is“murder, not voluntary

Amanslaughter.' Why? Provocation. What is‘provocation?'

Provocation is if I'm.proyoked then somebody does.something
to me to get me stirred up and in the context of '
1nvoluntary manslaughter it-has got to be somethlng'blg
enough and bad enough to get me so stirred up that I lose
my ablllty to stay calm and stay cool and keep my wits
about me and not do something stupid. Provocation. He ~-
based on the charge the options you're going to have Carter
is going to want you to say-perhaps it wasn't murder, it
was voluntary manslaughter because I was provoked, little
old me éot pronoked;“ Who is the provocator in this case?'
The fellow over. there in the white shirt. He started-it,
he provoked the guys across the street. if you'believe all
of that happened and somethlng happened, we know somethlng
happened, he provoked it. He didn't get provoked. He. .
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hopped out of a car with a .40 caliber pistol and went to

the guys that he had this peeing contest with over $450 and

he started it, he provoked it} it's‘not-voluntary:
nbnslaughter; What other options are you going to have?
‘The Judge is g01ng to charge you that involuntary

“manslaughter is-a lesser 1noluded offense of murder, and if

you flnd him not quilty of murder, if you find him not
guilty of. voluntary manslaughter then the Judge ~says you're

. going to be able to consider involuntary manslaughter. Let

me talk to you about intent for just a rimite before I get

into the'involuntary'manslaughter stuff. lasubmit to you
that" if you fire a gun-at somebody whether you actually
intend that person to fall dead on the ground is not the
kind of intent that Qe're‘talking about, the intent is an'
1ntentlonal flrlng of a gun at somebody whlch is llkely to
produce that person's death or:.great bodlly 1njury, that's
what we're talking about;-AYou don't have-a to get.out of
theAcar -~ BAnthony Carter didn't have to get out of the' car
with. the gun and in hiswmind say, "I'm g01ng to. walk across
the street and I'm going to put a bullet in J. D. Hemphill
and my:intention is that when I do:that he fall dead on the
groundr" that's:not,the kind of intent we're talking about.
The kind of intent we're talkingAabout is intentionally
arming yourself and firing the gun at somebody and causing

whatever result you caused, the chips will fall where they
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" do, that's the intent we're talking abOUt. Involuntary

manslaughter is unintentional, meanlng the 1n1t1al act of
firing a gun is unintentional. The most common example I
guess of involuntary manslaughter would be -- and there are
all kinds of scenarios -- but if I'm in some sort of a |

confrontation with another person —- and again this is not

“to do with this case, just by way of an exampie.—f if I'm

in some confrontation with another person and a firearm is
involved and Wefstruggle over the firearm and during that
struggle the-fireatnlgoes off with nebody meaning to
squeeze the trigger, it just happens during a struggle and
somebody'dies then that might be involuntary manslaﬁghter,

.that's the cla531c example of involuntary manslaughter in a

shootlng death The whole 1dea is that there was no
1ntentlon to fire the gun, 1t was’ almost llke 1t was
accidental, it was crlmlnal negllgence, somethlng that
wasn't ‘supposed to happen.at all. And I tell you, ladles
and gentlemen, this is not involuntary manslaughter, this
is not Anthony Carter fooling around with a-gun and it
accidently discharging.ahd going through the top of that

car killing [EHE The gun was being fired toward

- the top of the car toward the rear at an angle in. the

direction where the antagonists were. What does that mean?
He was shooting at them across the street. He didn't just
pop that gun up on the top of the car aﬁd‘it'accidently
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went off; he squeezed the trigger, went into the roof and

B g r g N LT e

it killed ¥BHEN it's not involuntary

. manslaughter. “And T tell you. this, teo, for it to be

. inveoluntary manslaughter Carter could not have been out

there committing a felony, and I tell you that Carter was
out there committing a ‘felony when all of this started and

when it happened. What'was the felory? * And.the Judge will

tell you about this when he instructs you on-'the law, he

“was'committing the felony of‘poiﬁtingiandvpresenting a

firearm. = There's ev1dence, he admitted that he had a

| firearm. He admltted that he showed that it was v131ble —

I'11 talk more about that later — he admltted it was -
visible' to people out there. He:adm;tted that he showed J.
D..Hemphilljthat he had a gun, he-told you that on the
tape, somebody that he had a dispute with he.presente,

- shows a firearm to.. iike, "Look at me,"™ he points it at

- him and he presents'it»tb him and*he threatens him, and you

can't say it's 1nvoluntary - he can't say it's 1nvoluntary

‘manslaughter under those circumstances when he- is out there
- committing that-felony w1th that firearm so it is not
involuntary manslaughter The Judge is. going. to talk to

~ you about self-defense: Let mé back-up. I'm going to go

back to involuntary manslaughter just a minute —- to
voluntary manslaughter. I'm going to tell you right now

that when you're thinking about voluntary manslaughter,
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sudden heat of passion on sufficient legal provocation,
when you're thinking about: that and when you're thinking
about self-defense, which I'm fixin' to talk about in a
mlnute, you can flip it and I'm going to ask you to flip it
bothuways. VOluntary manslaughter, agaln, don't mean to
beat a deao horse, but voluntary manslaughter you act on

sufficient — in a sudden heat of passion on sufficient

.legaivprovocation. What if J. D. Hemphill had shot Anthony

Carter, had hlt hrm and - killed him? J D. 'Hemphill is the

. person who would be able to claim voluntary manslaughter

because he was the one that was provoked. . Let's talk about

selffdefense, ~The Judge is going to tell you about four

~ elements' of self—defense One of them.quite obviously I'm

‘going to argue to you and you'll catch 1t in a mlnute 1s

the blg one, ‘the blg one in thlS case, I m.g01ng to’ talk .
about the other ones first, hit on them briefly. You've
got to be -- you've got‘to be in danger of death or serious
bodily harm or you've got to reasonabiy believe you are in
danger of death”or serious bodily harm. =~ For Bnthony
Carter —- for me hotfto have proved that this was not

self—defense - I've got to prove he committed murder, I've

. got to prove ‘he dldn t commit -- that he did not act in

self-defense, we accept that burden. I ve got to prove
what it was and what it wasn't. Okay. One of the elements

of self-defense is that he has‘either got to be in actual
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danger of death or serious bodily harm or have reason to

believe he was in dangef of ‘death or serious bodily harm.

Now, let's look at that for a minute..” Before I get into

that,  self-defense is not as simple as —— self-defense is

- not as simple as<if somebody shoots a slug at me I can

- shoot back; it ain't: that 51mple. Don't go back'there and

say whoever shot: flrst is wrong because 1t's not: that

simple. But was Anthony Carter in fear of anybody on

-May 3rd ;0f 20107 .No.’;He.told:you on,the,tapeathat Beneco

Ganson said, "Next time T see you.yOu better have a gun.”
Did that make him fearful —- did that make him fearful
enough that he wasn't going toigo back into Countryside
Mobile HomeuEark,;thetplace that testimony has'Shown us all

these peoplé_hung out in and do whateﬁer they do out there?

‘He had no fear:of these guys. He kept haﬁging out in the.
trailer park;despite all of these other oifficulties that
-~ you heard testimony about. What did,he tell you on the

tape? He got out of the car when he saw -them guys that he
had a beef with.. If you drive up into-a:yard and you see

somebody that yoﬁﬁthink wants to.whip your butt, if you

.don't want fo. get~your,buttAwﬁipped what do you do? You
-stay in the car - What did he do? He: got out of the car

with a gun. He's not afrald of anybody or anythlng out
there. He told you agaln on the tape J. D. Hemphlll never
pointed a gun at him when they were out there in the
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street. Hevdidn't report‘this'inoldent or any of the prior
problems that he had had with these guys to law
enforcement, and in fact, told Kayla Estes, "I'm going.to
handle this myself, I'm going to take care of it myself."
He'SWnot;fearfnl of these-gﬂys; - He- told you,on‘the«tape,
"lthen I saw them I always said the same things to them.
When I see them —- I always talked to them when I see
them." . When he is at his house w1th Evmie Coats or Emmie

Amanda - Coats, whlchever name you want to call her by, and
~ Marico Stevens comes over there, he knows these guys hang

- out over there. What ‘does he do? He tells Stevens, "Take |

us back Take us over there ; Drive us into this hornets

T nest.“' There S no hornets nest, he's not afraid of
,anybody He 1n1t1ated the drive into Countryside Moblle

~’Home Park, asked Stevens to take them He said thlS on the

tape, he wasn't g01ng to let nobody stop hun from g01ng,
meaning to the ‘trailer park, he wasn 't ‘going to let nobody

stop him from going. On the- way over there there's

'testlmony that he and.Marlco Stevens in Amanda Coats'

presence talked about the problems that ‘he had with the:

guys in the traller park and talked about the fact that

they would be down there. I think hlS quote on the tape
was- the guys down there where we're fixin' to drop -Coats
off, "They're beeflng with me," and he knew ahead of time
they would be there. He's not afraid of them. He took

603



604

© ® 9 ;s W N

NN N NN RN R R R R e R
G s W N = S v o S o s W N RO

624
CLOSING ZARGUMENTS

that pistol from Stevens from under the. seat of Stevens'

car and he took itxin the car on.the way over there. He's

-.not afraid. . If he's afraid he's not going over there. He

armed himself before he knew anybody,over.there»had a gun.
He got out of the car with a gun and later saw Hemphill

~with a gun, if Hemphill actually had a'gun;“ He got out of
..the car with the pistol. where people couldasee it«fﬁHe got

asked thlS question, on the second 1nterv1ew I think 1t was

let me just quote you what he said about the gun- from the

. second 1nterv1ew, my recollectlon, if you recall

differently that's for you. He eventually way.lnto-the

~Asecond interview says, "I had one,". meaning a gun, he-

eventually admitted‘that'he had a gqun. He said, "He put |
the gun in my lap," meaning,Stevens. 'Heisaid, "T had put

it‘up " when he walked aoross the road. Up means what? I

'don‘t know, maybe in: hlS waistband but that's what he said.
%;He sald he had it tucked © And I think it was Clark Crump

asked. hlm,—“Could people see. 1t7“d And if you.recall his

'answer,,“Yeah;“ "Could people see 1t?v;Yeah,P He's not

hidingathat;gun,»he waﬁtsvthem,to see tﬁe gun. He's a big

. man,. "What you:gonna do ﬁow?ﬁ ‘ﬁefs‘talking,aboupiJ; D.

Hemphill, "When I seen his gqun. I showed him;;hatai had one
too." That gun is out there the whole time. That's what
he told you about the gun. Was.it like this or -- was it \

like A or was it like B? A is Stevens and Carter are going
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to drop Emmie Coats back off and have no antiCipation of
anything at all going to happen in Countryside. Or'nas it
like B, "They're over there, I've got a problem with them,
you've got a gun, let's go take care of it?" What did
Emmie Coats tell you9 There's talk on the way over there
about the problem and the guys belng there. What did Ermie
Coats tell you'P She T think used- the phrase on cross
examination -- let me find it —- a hyped 31tuatlon, a hyped
situation. Hyped could mean excited I m.f1x1n' to get in.a
rumble, or hyped could mean I m.scared somethlng bad mlght
happen. If it was the ladder, I'm hyped because I'm scared
and SOmething'bad might happen then‘what do you‘do? }You
don't go in there. ThlS was - hype like, “Let's go in there

and take care of thls," and 1t concerned her enough that

she testlfled I believe on créss examlnatlon that when

Carter jumped out of the car and her know1ng he had that

- gun she hopped out of the back seat on the opp081te side

and went around to the passenger s side front door ‘that he

.got out of to try to intervene, she told you that. This

was not some 1nnocent encounter, she knew somethlng was
going 'to happen and she.trled to stop~1t but it wasn't to
be stopped. He had no. fear of ‘these guys. Another -- the

‘ biggy on self-defense is thlS, and thlS is the blggy, for

© me to —— and it’s kind-of backward loglc, but again I've

got to prove it's not self-defense, and one of the ways
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it's not self-defense is if you are at fault in bringing on

“the difficulty. That's why I say it's not asuaimple as if

somebody shoots at me I'm entitled to;shoot back, that's
not the law. You've got to look at how it started, and if

I'm.the defendant and I'm claiming self-defense or trying

" to make the State prove it wasn't self-defense then I've

> got to be able to —— then it.haSDgot to be shown that I

didn't start it, you' ve got. to be without fault in bringing

:<on the dlfflculty Wthh leads to the shootlng death. There

is no.way 1n the world the facts of this case show anything
but Anthony Carter was in fact at fault in bringing on the - °
dlfflculty Agaln, remember what I said’ just a few minutes .
ago, but for what that man over there did the shootlng

would never have happened  And I'm

not 901ng to.go repeat all of the steps. from riding over

there to gettlng out of the car with the gun and what

“happened on the street, but:clearly,he started it. He was

atjfault in;bringinghon_the'difficulty,which led to gunfire
in Countryside Mobile Home ?érk-, That's why I tell you,

ladies-and gentlemen,’I said this in my opening statement,

I said you‘might-not conclude e—pwhén;you,go_home today and

this is all’over‘for y'all you might not know in your mind -
1ndlv1dually or collectively whether shots got fired from
across the street first or whether Anthony Carter fired

first, you might not know. And T told you -— and I don't
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mean this —- when I said it doesn‘t'mstter; but legally it
doesn't matter, because if shots did get fired across the
street~first'toward Carter he provoked it, he started it,
he brought on the difficulty which led to those shots..
Agaih, let's flip it. Assume that J. D. Hemphill had a
gunf shot a'guﬂ, or Beneco Ganson either one, and shot and
killed Anthony. Carter,  they have-self—defense because he
came out there with the gun and pointed it at Hemphill and
threatened Hemphlll that's where the self-defense would
be, not with hlm as the aggressor initiating the contact

while armed w1th a .40 caliber pistol. All right. I told
you this too —- and agaln, I don't mean it gelldly, T don't

"mean it's not lmportant = when I say it doesn' t matter, I
‘:don't mean it's not 1mportant for you to dlsregard it, but

: legally I submlt to you it doesn t matter whether you

o e 1

conclude he: shot'Ja

Ao R

d or Marico Stevens shot .

It's 1n¥ortant but legally I tell you it does not matter.

‘Why,not? The Judge is g01ng to charge you on somethlng

that legally we call accomplice liability, the hand of one
is the hand of all, you've heard it. I don't know how long
that legal principle existed but longer than any of us have

been here, the hand of one is the hand of all. What does
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that mean? In lots of cases, murder cases, homicide cases,
death cases, murder.cases one gun, one shot, one victim,
two or ‘three people: participating in the crime. . And again,

not related to.this case,'got nothing to do with this case,

ybut an example would be two. guys go- into a convenient store
.to rob it and they're both there to rob the convenlence

" store and'one of them is carrylng, strapped as 'some people
‘would say, got a gun, ‘the other guy has got to —— and he isv
:-goihg-to hold the clerk at gunpoint and..the other guy is
_g01ng to ‘go around the counter, open the reglster and get

Athe money. One gun, they re both present and.part1c1pat1ng

and somethlng goes haywire and the guy with the gun shoots

 -and the .clerk gets shot and killed, the ‘guy that is. going

to take the money out of- the reglster hadn't shot anybody

‘ but he is just as gullty of that murder- as the quy who

fired the gun. Why? Because they re both acting in.

coricert, - both present,;bothvpart1c1patrng;yot;ng5;pgether '

‘«1n the furtherance of -the crlme., So I tellvyou whether he

%ﬂshot er whether Marlco Stevens shot legally doesn't matter.

Why? Some of the same stuff we've talked about, I've.

talked about, he .starts it, Anthony Carter started the

whole mess. - The beef was between Anthony Carter and the
guys across the street over a $450 fence jumping, over some
dope, Marico Stevens dldn t have anythlng to do with that.

There's no evidence in this case to suggest to you that
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Marico- Stevens was -in the middle of that. Of course,

Marico is there and this gun changed hands and he produced

the gun first but he had the gun, Anthony Carter had the

gun in the car before he got out. I submit to you that
there'is evidence that Anthony Carter fired the shots from
that .40 caliber gun and we're gonna talk about the

forensics in-a minute, but even if you conclude he

didn't —— I'm gbing to try,to convince you he did in a

‘minute —— but even if you conclude that he didn't and

Marico Stevens did, how did that happen? It happened after
Anthony Carter produces the gun in an armed confrontation
in the street and‘does something maYbe to provoke gunfire:

and comes back around the car. Well, if Carter didn't

'shoot the gun then how- dld Stevens get the gun° From
'Carter.' One way or the other Stevens -—"if you believe
_Stevens shot, Stevens ended up with the qun from Carter

‘ during sonething that Carter started. They're both guilty

of it, We'fe only trying Carter today but they're both
%3 based on all of the

guilty of the murder of. [E¥iEH
facts and 01rcumstances of what happened. What do we know
about foren81cs in this case? Of course I go-. flrst and

Mr. Llfsey goes last and I have to anticipate thlngs he's

: going to say and you can antlc1pate things he's going to

say from the progress of the trial. Gunshot residue.

We've got no gunshot residue that shews us that anybody had
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gunpowderlor gunshot residue on him or her. It would be
nice if I had somebody's hands that I could say shot a gun
but I don't. Is that unusual? You heard from I believe it

was Ms. Simmons, Ila Simmons with SLED, that no, all kinds

of things can cause gurishot residne if there to get gone.

She also.told you this: ‘If the local;law enforcement *
agency collects swabs fromt somebody's hands for a gunshot

_residue kit and that .collected evidence was taken more ‘than

six houtsvafter the person :perhaps-possessed it or. fired a

‘pistol‘we\ain't going. to do anything with it becaueelit'

not rellable, it's not rellable ev1dence, it's: not rellable

" science to analyze it. So we talked to who we —— we get it

from who we can get it frgm, the sheriff's office did that
nlght, and the only person that they could get it from from
hands was John John Hill, and Mr. Hlll sald they only take
it from one hand. Maybe he just doesn't remember that

.right, the evidence clearly shows from Simmons we had swabs’
-from both hands. And,  of course, John John‘Hill says they
dldn t pat him down for weapon, Mike Nuller said, "Yeah, we

did." thn John Hill was out there -— nobody says John

John Hlll was there when-the‘shootlng occurred, there's no

- reasonuto‘suspect John John Hill had a pistol,orlwould'haVe

gunshot residue on his hands because nobody said he was out
there when the shooting occurred, but we got it from Hill,

that's the only person we get it from. And we didn't get
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1t from Carter and Stevens, and this is one s of those thlngs

Mr. Lifsey is going to scream about, I I sure. We were all

over Carter and Stevens at the hOSpltal on May 3rd when

TR

they showed up with laylen] 2! took their shirts,

nobody swabbed.thelr hands. Well,'why? Beoause of the

information that was provided to law enforcement

specifically by Carter. Carter and Stevens were witnesses,

maybe victims when this'thing'broke open. There was never
initially.that night any knowledge or'suggestion that they
had shot at anybody' so nobody took GSR kits from them.
Took their shirts, no GSR on ‘the shirts. . . Well, you know,

how do you explain that? Well, Ms. Simmons said it's not
'always going to be there We- still know both ofdthem

possessed that 40 callber plStOl though because Carter

.told you they dld So T submlt agaln it's 1mportant but it
: doesn t matter. DNA 801ence has come a long way. I hate

CSI because it’ creates thlS expectatlon that we're g01ng to

have a video picture of what happened out there and it just
doesn't work that way 1n real life. But we've got science
and we've got a goodvcrime unit with the sheriff's office

and they kriow what to do and they take that .40 caliber

-plstol and they do swabs inside the trlgger guard and on

the back slide and on the handles whlch are the most likely
places that somebody is going to leave touch DNA. They
swabbed 1t in there, they swabbed it up there which is

611
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where you rack it back and they swabbed the handles. And

‘they took samples, buccal swabs from everybody that they

could establish pbtentially had possessed that pistol or
touched it. Fmmie :Coats;’ Jackie Sanders, gosh I can't-
remember, -of course, Carter and Stevens, F-can't remember

who else. But the best that could’ be done by Ms. Leisy on

"DNA is you've'gOt a: partial DNA profile, a-mixture‘of'three
: peoplé‘inside yhé trigger guard and everybody is excluded
’exceptAfor-Stevens,;and the p;obability;of'randomly

1se_le‘cting somebody who could have not been excluded was one
in 65. ‘She told you that the normal statistic is one in
quadrillions or trillions and there aren't but -- I don't

know how many billion people she said were on the earth —

but one in 65 I submit ié.not.stétistically Significant,

that there might be 65 people in this courtroom today. And
what shevs basically saying is that somebody in this

- courtroom is going-to be in the same-boat thaE'Mérico
- Stevens was .in on the. -DNA statlstlcally speaking., It could
_.be me, ;tscould be anybody, that 1Sgnot;statlstlgally

significant. And again, does. it matter° We- know -that both

- of them possessed that: gun. Anthony Carter .told you
.yesterday on. the-tape, "I had the qun." We don't need DNA

from Ms. ILeisy to tell you he had the gun, we know he had
the gun. Firearms reconstructlon, gunshot reconstruction,

the car. What do we know about the car? We know where the
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car was from Ms. Coats. It would have been awfully nice
for the car to have been sitting there in the driveway
. where it:happened when the sheriff's office rolled up. It
“would have been awfully nice for Emmie: Coats to have been
truthful and not gone out there the next morning and
started kicking stuff around to try to cover up the lies
she told before, - but it didn't happen that way. - So what

we've got is where the car was based on what Ms. Coats is

WL d Y s W N R

telling us and we've got the cartridge.cases on the ground

from where Ms. Coats told us they were. And I submit that

=
= o

maybe you've got problems believing her, maybe you'don’t.

=
N

She's telllng you what she told, and I submit this is the
13 thing to think about with Emmle Coats, it's like a soap

| 14 opera: You talk about Beneco Ganson and Anthony Carter and
ih ﬁEmmle Coats and Jennlfer Mbrrls and Kayla Estes and = my
16 God, 50 much.m1x1ng up and 1nt1macy among those people, but
17 think about Enmie Coats. Emmle Coats is somebody who at

‘18 the tlne thls happened, at the tlme thlS happened ‘Was

| 19 involved one way oOr another w1th Anthony Carter. Now, why

20 in the world would she rat ‘him out so to speak if it's not
21 true?‘ What happened between the timé AnthonyvCarter got

22 out of that car with the gun and the next day when she told
23 the sheriff's offioe that he got out of.that car with that
24 qun to make her tﬁrn-against him? Nothing. She told the

25 truth about that. She didn't tell the truth at first, she
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didn't want,~~%a‘baby had been shot.in.her driveway. I
wish she had told the truth that*hight but she didn't. But
why would she havé made up Anthony Carter being theiguy
that got out oﬁ the car with the gun?‘.What else do we know
about the car? We know that the car was pulled into the

trailer. The car is hot”shown’onzthe‘sketch, nobody drew

it in but pebple have testified about. where it was, the car

is in there somewhere Face of the car away from the road,

. the front of the car - 1s more that way, back of the car is

toward the mlddle The car stopped ThlS car if you-
believe Carter. ends up becomlng the cover from the fire
comlng across .the . road. Carter and Stevens are,over here

on the passenger srde of. the car. We‘vefgot cartridge

. cases. —— I said car, that's the trailer, on the passenger

side of the car. ‘We'te got cartridge cases'according'to

Ms. Coats, belleve her or don't, but according to her |

that's the best we've got —- right there 40 caliber

cartrldge cases, one of them .is out there more toward the

-road, out here, the others are aleong-the-passenger side of

- the car closer to where people were probably What does

that ‘tell.us? AWhat,dld Emmie Coats -say? FErmie Coats is
the only person that affirmati&ely said there was any -——
other than Carter -- that affirmatively said there was
anything —— any‘firevor anything coming from across the

street. and she said, "I saw the one flash from across the
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“streeﬁ," prééﬁmabiy a~mﬁzzié”flésh. But she said when .

that's going on that Carﬂer is‘éoming back toward thé back
of the car and gets near the back.of tﬁe-car and she sees
him —— let me see what she says -- I think she said stop

and draw, I think that's what she said; where‘dbes he do =
that? At fhe back of the car.- And what ends up at the

back of the car-is that .40 caliber cartridgé case. He
moved frbm.there along the passenger side of the car toward
the front, that makes sense. If éomebddy over here is

shooting aﬁ you and you're taking cover, you}re going to

k‘take'cover at the best place you can away from where the-
‘téﬁtégOﬁistSfare,«if that's what they are, which is as far
.'-tdward the front and is on that side of the car. What do
~ we know about the car? The gunshot reconstrﬁctipn.‘ Two.

" shots into ‘the roof of the car from the ffont diagonally

across the car, two shots into the roof, ‘one more toward

the front, one toward the back, one toward the passéhger

* side, one toward the middle, thosefpehetrated the roof of

the car. No doubt from Lancaster County crime scene guys

Aahd SLED crime scene quys, those shots-gbt fired from the

front of the car Whiqh is the most consistent place for

Carter and Stevens to be hiding -from whatever they are

-hiding from. . Other shot concluded through the front —-

" open front passenger side window into the car; another one

into the car. The shootiné happens on this side and toward
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the front of the car, I submit that's conclusive. What
else do we know? I asked them all this. BAny bullet hole

‘defects ‘as they call them on.the rear of the car? . None.

People initially maybe would see that hole in the back

-glass and say,: "Well, somebody shot that car from the back
* and that's what killed thet baby, " that's not what

happened. .That shot came through the car out the window

from inside to out. No bullet holes, no defects 1n the

'back.of«the car. .. Any defects, bullet holes on . the

passenger side of the car ln the dlrectlon of this alleged

- fire from over here? None None. T submit 1t s

conclu31ve that shots from here killed J;ﬂ

Mr. Llfsey is going to tell you all about these flred

- cartridge cases. They picked them up, they' relout»there.
We've got three .40 caliber cartrldge cases near the car,

we've got some 7.65-millimeter cartridge cases,. fired

bullets, on thé ground out across:. We've got one

7. 65ﬁmlllumeter bullet unfired on the. ground out there

somewhere, we've got a .380 and I think we ve,got;a couple

. of .22's. How many guns is that? That's four guns. Have

: you,heatdwanythinglin,this~trial_that,convinoes.you'that

four guns were being shot out there that night? -No. Why
do I tell you‘that? People testified people shoot out

‘there all of the time, there's cartridge cases probably

lying out there all of the time. There's nothing that says
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these:cartridge cases came from the fire that was initiated
from the guys across the street and certainly not from four
guns. We know from Ms. Eichenmiller -- you ain't going to
have this in the back and I'm not going to hand it to you
but I'm going to'pick it ﬁp - we've get'etpff.' We've éet~

'.cartridge cases that Fmmy Coats turnedkever, we have got

bullet jacket fragments from fired bullets, cdpper’that
breaks off of the bullet when it gets. fired found in the
car. We've got one found behind the car, back here behind

the car which again is consistent with it being fired

" through the car, hot something that came from shots from

across the street. And we've got this, that's what killed
that baby, and Ms. Elchenmlller tells you "I tested the qun

»lt was worklng frne," meaning 1t's ready to go. "I tested

the:certridge caéeérthat Ermie Coats picked up and this gun
shot. I tested}these pieces‘ef bullet jacket that'were.
receVered.from‘the back headreSt‘on the driver's side
inside that car and that gun fired it, ahd I teéted that
piece of jacket fragment found in the street back there
behlnd.the car in the direction that Carter was shootlng _
and this gun fired it We've got the gun, and 1t is the
gun that Carter had that he told you he had. How do we
know that? Where did we get the gqun? We got it from

Stevens' people, some mysterious way this gun turns up from

Stevens' people,'Carter‘s running buddy, we've got it

617
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though. Why is Carter the shooter? He's the one again

- that had the trouble with the guys across the street

because hetripped'them‘off,for?450 bucks. It wasn't
Stevens' fight, it was his fight, he had the problem. He
is getting questioned May 4th and May 6th," very evasive.
What did he tell them by Emie Coats? “Skinny white girl,

I don t know her, Stevens must know her." . Gosh' How -

: helpful was that7 Of course, he doesn t know that they
g know and. that - she s probably srttlng in another offlce over

_there spilling her beans right then Every llttle bit of

information that came in started pinning Anthony Carter

rdown and they caught him in untruth after untruth and they
' leaned on thb they leaned on. hlm for hours, they leaned on

.. him and he told some things. " He never went that final

three‘yards to the goal line and admitted shootlng that
gun. But he's in a box because they know, they know more

than he thinks they know. and they keep pushing and he keeps’
- giving little bits of informationg, This is_his statement,

?just some of: it. Quoting again, your memory not mine, the

May 4th statement, wouldn't admlt knowing Coats, said she

‘was a.skinny whlte female, admitted he had the beef with

Hemphill -and Ganson over drugs Got out of the car because
he saw them. Didn't have a gun, dldn't have a gun, dldn't
have a gun, how many times did you hear that? It's not

true, we know he had a gun, after hours he told‘us he had a
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gun. He told'you also in relation to the éhootlng we know
that he shot and the shots came from that car because he
told you Ganson and Hemphill never came across the street

into that yard where that car was. : He finally after awhile

then —- I got "then" highlighted —- then Carter admits
_ knowlng Coats and that she had been at his house and this

glrl that he didn't know he was so close to when she hops
out of the car he says, "We hugged each other How -
helpful was that to deny that early on? Didn't see no gun,
no gun was in the’ car, ain't seen no gun "Was there any
return flre from y' all's side of the street? Not that I
know of." -Didn't shoot nothing, didn't see Stevens shoot,
no shote from the front side of. the car that I know of,

that car, that front.' That s all May 4th.- May 6th, two

‘days later,""I know for sure I didn' t have a gun ' I dldn t.
have a gun. Hell no I didn't have a- gun, didn't shoot no

gun,vnan."' And another “then" that I have highlighted,
"then," finally he's in a box. They keep pushing him. "We
know, Bo, we know, we've talked to people.” They probably

stretched 1t a llttle blt, but they sald they probably had

people lined up. out there to tell them,about this case.
He's in a box. What s he going to do? "Well, you know,
either I'm going to say I shot the qun that killed Jaylen

- Jackson or I'm going to say Marico Stevens is the most '

- likely person that did it."™ So what does he do finally? -
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He passed it off to old Marico, said Stevens was shootihg.
Still said, "Didn't have no gun, didn't have no gun." Even
when he's telling them Stevens is shooting‘he saYs, "L
didn't have no gun, didn't shoot.the”guh period, that's a
fact." And finally, again, another "then" ‘that I
highlighted one, he finally tells them, "Yeah, I handled

© that gun, I had that gun." Never admltted shootlng it but

~says, "I had it."™ I tell you agaln, ladles and gentlemen

it doesn't matter whether he shot 1t or. whether Stevens

shot 1t, one of the two shot that gun and bullets from that

gun penetrated the top of that car and 1t kllled Jaylen
ﬁJackson You' re going to have these plctures back there

‘w1th you but I want:to let you look at a couple of them

State' s,Exhlblt_NUmber 48.. Do.you see the car seat? Do

you see the back seat and you see the front seats and you

‘~see:rods through the roof of that car -and Qne’throdgh the
-open window\éver thete?;-It shows you‘whefaithbse‘bullets
‘went into that car.- And we know that child was in the:back
. seat.and we know that chiid at»some point might ‘have been
~in the carnseatzbet-was never buckled ihithe~ear seat and I

- suomit to you waSEjust_crawlingiaround ihﬂthe'bagk of that

car. State's Exhibit Number 49, it shows a rod going into
a bullet hole on the back headrest in that car séat in the

seat of that car through the roof. 'State's Exhibit Number
50, it shows a rod geing through the hole. at the base of
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the windshield, there was a shot fired.through that car.
State's Number 53, it shows all three of them. The child
didn't have a chanceh;dldn't have a chance. It's not easy

but it's getting close for you. I'm going to sit down,

Mr. Llfsey is. going to get up and the Judge is going to

talk and then it is going to be y'all. Doesn't matter that
it was Jaylen instead of who Carter intended to kill, she

got shot and killed because of what he did, because of what

he started and I submit to you what he finished. He didn't

mean to kill her but he meant to kill somebody  when he
flred a 40 caliber pistol across that car towards these’
other guys. "There should only be one verdict and T submit

to you ladles and gentlemen you know beyond a reasonable

.doubt based  on everythlng that you've heard that that

- verdict should be gullty of murder, not voluntary

manslaughter, not 1nvoluntary manslaughter and it is

: certalnly not self-defense, I ask you to convict him of

murder. And when you'flnd him guilty of murder I ask you |

. to flnd hnn guilty of the flrearms charge Wthh goes along

with 1t. Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay jurors, take a break ‘Don't talk
about - the case. | ) |

(The jury left the courtroom and a recess was taken.)

THE COURT: 'You may proceed.

MR. LIFSEY: Please the Court, Your Honor? Ladies and
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gentlemen. Ladies and gentlemen, I told you at the

" beginning of this case this would be just a tragic, awful

series of events and it has been, but I.also told you at
the beginning of the case that it's .not. murder and - it's

not. How -do we know it's not murder? ell,'the Judge is

'gorng to tell you in a minute that self—defense is a

complete defense to both’as'to*murder and as to~voluntary
manslaughter Now, we 've got four pOSSlble verdicts in
this case; gullty of murder, guilty of voluntary ,
manslaughter, gullty of 1nvoluntary manslaughter and not
gullty. I want to talk for a little bit about the first .

two, gu1lty of voluntary andr—— excuse me, murder,and

'voluntary.' The involuntary case —- the-involuntary,verdict

. 1s an interesting question and that's a closer call and I'm

going to argue to you they haven't proven that to you
either and I'1l talk tolyou about that in a mlnute I want
to talk to you about murder and voluntary. Why do we know

- it's not murder and. voluntary7 We know it's not murder and

. voluntary because self—defense is an absolute and complete -

bar to that.: Now, I argue to you it's clear it's
self—defense in thls case, but .I want to.tell you'the-
intellectual‘position you have to take;-visa vie, that -
issue, and the Judge is going to tell you~this: The State
has to prove beyond a reascnable doubt that it is not
self-defense, that's important as I said and I'll argue to
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yonnin~a minute it's clear it's self-defense. But if there

is.any reasonable doubt in your mind that he has proven it

is«not self-defense you have to find him not guilty as to

murder and to‘voluntary,-you are required to, that is the

-~ law. So let's talk about why we know it is self-defense

and I'm.goingAto kind of go through the. facts of the case
as 'you heard 1t come out on the stand and as T remember it.
We know it's self—defense because let's talk about the
motivation*of‘why this happened. The State's theory, and I
don't think it's contested at all and I've tried —— and let
me say this, T have not asked a million questions because Iﬂ
don't ask questions that aren't important, so I am not
argulng with them that this is a debt. Let's ‘think about
that a minute. Thelr theory is that my cllent stole $150 _
from them, and by them,I m referrlng to “the. J D. Hemphlll,
Beneco Ganson, John John Hill gang, I m.referrlng to that
crowd. Okay. So theiritheory is that my client stole
money from.them Well think about this a minute, if
somebody’steals‘money from you it makes Yyou angry. Okay
It doesn t - the person who steals from you doesn't get
angry at you, T mean —- I don't want to be fllppant about
it but I ve got a little brother and when we were kids he
couldn‘t keep up with money worth a durn, he went through
it like.this ‘ And.I was tight —— I'm still tight -- I'was

tight. He would come 1nto my room and he would take money
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that I had, my allowance money and he would say he was

borrowing it and he wouldn't pay me back and it made me mad

f*but'he~never got mad at me because he.took my money. Think
- about ‘the history of confrontations-the: solicitor has told

~you about. The Hemphill-Ganson-Hill gang is the one who is

always the aggressor. " They beat: up his little brother;

" they ran.him out of the trailerrpark;‘they&tbld.him.he

better have a gun the next time they seen him. Now, ask

- yourself this, have you heard F—;up‘until*theuincident on .

May 3rd, have you heard any testimony of anything my client

.did aggressi%e toward them at all? And the answer. is no,

you haven't. “And. it's hot‘surprisingwbecause‘it7is-logical

‘that if someone steals money from.you.youtare mad, and

-7

these people With‘their:criminal reccrdsaincluding'gun‘
convictions are the kind.of_people;who take getting mad

seriously, 50 we ‘know it's self—defense'because of

. motivation for what happened May 3rd. - We know 1t is -
;self—defense because of'where the initial; contact occurred
*‘I'm.g01ng to brlng thlS over here =3 mlnute and let, you look
at it. It's.undlsputed-at least as best I can.tell -- now,
Julet‘ﬁeﬂsayasdmething,.I,want to,eay.a.word and-Ifli get
. back to what I'm talking about. When I say ﬁndisputed;

there's a lot undisputed in this case but I find it
interesting that the solicitor —- there's basically three

or four people who testified about what happened out there
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that day that realiy.know what heppened; my client, Emmie
Coats and Beneco Ganson, they're really the only ones out
there that know what happened and they'Ve all told little
different versions. And, of course, the solicitor has
pieked~the partswof~eachﬁof»their—versions that most-
support his theory even if they conflict with each other
whlch is: flne, that S argument, that is fine, but it's not
proof beyond a reasonable doubt. But now, where did the
confrontation occur? The testimony is that my client gets
out of the car and walks to the middle of the street where
he has a confrontation with John Hemphill. Now, listem, if
he came there to kill him, why doesn't'he kill him there?
If you come there with malice —- and the solicitor defined
malice for you, evilness, w1ckedness 1n your heart - if
you come there with mallce and you get’ out with your gun

not .to protect yourself ‘because you re scared of these
people who have beaten you up and done these bad thlngs to
you but because you are evil and you have got malice in
your heart, why don't you shoot him dead right there in the
mlddle of the street when he 1s rlght up at them? We know
it's self-defense because if it wasn't he would have shot
hxm right there. Why_else_do we know it's self- defense? |
We know it's self-defense becausé whetener happened in the
middle of-the street was over.‘ Everybody, my client, Ermie

Coats, lying Beneco Ganson, all say that my client turned
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and walked away, he walked away, the confrontation was
over. Whatever happens after that is on J. D. and Beneco,
whichever one of the two of them fired the gun. Why else
do we know it was self-defense? We know it' was

self-defense because we know they were returning fire. The

' solicitor wants to-get up here and say,” "Well, we don't

really know if they were —-" of course we know they were

returning fire. Why do we know they're returning fire? To

.-begln w1th there were shell ca81ngs everywhere. In

addition to these whether or. not you want to belleve Ermie
Coats- about where she found them, regardless of what the

.380 ca51ngs, the .40 callber ca81ngs, regardless of those

:we have one -- 1tems one, two and three are two

7.65+mllllmeter casings and.onev7.65 cartrldge,rlght here.
Why haven't we done any teshing on those° We oall-up
witness after wutness to describe and explaln why we have
no ev1dence and we dldn't hear a 81ngle person say we've
made any. effort to test those. .Where,ls that,ln all of
this? - How about -the shell .casings —— the .22 caliber
casings pack here? And.I don't know 1f'you picked this up

but: let e empha31ze, six and seven are 22 callber

: ca31ngs, eight is a Samsung. cellphone L don't ‘know if you

noticed it but the crime scene officer said that's.Beneco
Ganson's cellphone. Wouldn't it have been nice -- and they

get these the night it happens?‘ Why didn't they run and do
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their fancy touch DNA testing on that? Wouldn't YOu have
liked to have known if Beneco Ganson handled those: shell

casings? Wouldn't you have liked -- that that coincidently

just happened to be found rlght w1th his cellphone?. There
- are bullet holes in- Fmter Coats 's-trailer, where: are the

- pictures of those? We can 1ntroduce picture after picture

after picture but we dan't take a picture of Emmie Coats'

trailer? There's a pattern of only show1ng you evidence

~ that helps them and not show1ng you any ev1dence that tends

to negate their theory Look at all — I mean, you know,
let's.accept for a minute —— and I know the solicitor says
she oidn't repoit it until later, but I argued a-little bit
during the trial that they should have. searched this whole
area“from.the beginning and I still argue that. But let's
aesﬁmelfor a minute that sohehow'they were juétified'lﬁ
only" searchlng thlS side of the road the night it happened.
By the next day when they get: the report of Frmie Coats‘
picking up shell cartrldge cases they are at her house, 

somewhere in this stdck of pictures is a ‘picture of Danny

Bennett and Emmie Coats -standing right'there. ‘Why didn't

they look arohnd'her trailer then? 'Why didn't they take
pictures of bulletlholesuthen? We know it was -
self-defense. Look at the damages to the car. Okay.
Listen, these shots came from the back, they came at

angles. I asked officer =- let me make sure I got it
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right -- Jeff Steele on the stand aren't these injuries to

the car more consistent with defensive shots than they are

,aggreSSive shots and he said yes. Okay. That's their own

witness admitting they were firing in defense. based on. the

physical science. - I didn't arque with him and challenge‘

* him on the way the rods were or. anythlng because’ it doesn't

* matter because I agree with that, but I dld ask hlm.lS it

con31stent with defense and 1t was- We know 1t was

.self—defense Why else do we know it was self*defense?

'Well, of course, we know it was self~defense because

Marshall and Crump’ said lt.was. Llsten,.let me talk to you
about the-interview ‘I understahd that my client didn't
tell the truth lnltlally Okay. .I argue to you he
ba31cally told the same general story that is supported by
both Emmle and lying Beneco Ganson, that he.gets out of the

. car,. he approaches, he has some sort of dlSCUSSlOD,

onfrontatlon, whatever you would call it, and he turns and

_ walks .away and that's when he hears shots flred, that has

been- con31stent. Llsten, I'11 admlt to you that he

didn't —— I can't deny he didn' t»tell the full story from

the beglnnlng, I wish he had. But it's Jinteresting in that

lengthy 1nterv1ew the police tell some of their side of the
story and I wrote it down because T thought it was
important and I'm glad you heard it. Marshal: "We
absolutely know there was more than one gun."™ Marshal:
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“We-are 100 percent‘posltiye"there was‘more than one oun.“H
Crump: "He can tell where shots came from, we can tell
shots came from both sides." Crump again:  "We're certain
fire was returned." Crump again: "We've established in
all 1ikelihood the other side fired first;"'that's the
police.officers tellinolthemrv They know, they know they
were returning fire, they know they were returning fire.

And then to get up ‘on the stand and then get up- and argue

to you that it doesh't matter? Listen, I have been trying -

murder cases a long tlme, the idea that the State can stand

in. front of. you and say we don t know who shot and we don't

know who shot first but therefore you still need to convict
him.of‘murder ‘and somehow that doesn't»matter is crazy.

Llsten, the only way you can conv1ct hlm.of voluntary or

. murder, okay, is if you belleve beyond any. reasonable dodbt j

it is not self—defense, and to do that ~-— and like I say,

my'argument is-clear it's‘self—defenSe but -you don't have
to accept my argument. If there iSteven:a reasonable doubt
at all that it is self—defense you cannot consider those

two offenses and to get there you've got to ignore the.

‘pollce officers’ own ‘words, all of the forensrc ev1dence

and all of the - testlmony as best we can as to what happened
out there Now, 1nvoluntary Involuntary is a closer

call, okay, I'm not g01ng to sugar coat it to you, 1t s a

: closer call. Involuntary is the operatlng of a gun or

629
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flrearm.ln a negligent or unsafe manner. There is
certainly an argument from the State that- the shots entered

this vehicle in.an unsafe manner,‘but'whose fault is that?

I don't know who shot the gun. I don't know if it was

Stevens or I don't know if it was Carter, my client argues

“it was SteVens, But here:is the thing, ‘whoever shot it

shot it in response to what the Hemphill-Ganson-Hill gang
did. And the question is are.you going to as a jury say
beyond a. reasonable doubt that the negligence and‘the use

of that firearmfis my client's fault? How ‘can you say that

when. you don't know ‘who'.shot themn, and.when as. best as. you

. can determlne 1t the whole thlng .started because.of them -

and shots were flred first because of them? How can you do
that’> There s jUSt too many- questlons in this case. Now
listen, the Judge said -- I think it was the JUdge, it may
have been the sol;qltor - somebody sald we don't have a

video;camera'outathere, okayy'and.I know we .don't and most

“crimes -= once ‘in.a while you do, most,crimes you don't:

- have video.- But murder, voluntary manslaughter,.

involuntary mahslaughter,“any case that involves a homicide

. 1s serious business; and thexJudge-is goihg to tell you and

I told‘yoafat‘the beginning, ﬁy client_iS'presumedh

innoeent, you have to view him as an .innocent man, that the
State has the burden of proof, and that when you judge that
burdeh you can judge it both by the evidence they've called
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or the evidence they've chosen not to'cali,'and that most
importantly they've got to prove their case beyond a
reasonable doubt to the end of this case. If there's any
reasonable doubt you've got to return a verdict of not
guilty, that's the law and-it's not easy, and I'll talk to
you about that in a minute, I know it but you've got to do

. it. There's too many questions in this case. They don't

even know Who_shot-the gun. They call witness after

‘witness to'say.they've got no gunshot residue and they've

got no DNA, and of course they say that we didn't kriow to
take it from Carter. Bologna. They had Mr. Carter and
Mr. Stévens at the emergency room, they knew there was

evidence there to collect because they took their shirts

| but they dldn‘t bother to take the 90 seconds it mlght take
" to take a Q-tip out and swab thelr hands. Now llsten, I

don't" know what would have been on it but the point is it's
ot my jOb to prove anything, 1t s their job, they ve got
the burden of proof. The solicitor said use your commOn
sense. I want you to use your COMmon sense, but you have
to use your common sense in relatlon to the law the JudgeA
gives you and the law 5ays that they ve got the burden of
proof, not the defendant. Where 1s J D. HemphlllV Think

about this a minute, one thing I agree with the solicitor

. said is this case -- - listen, it's awful. - Okay.: And I hate

to even —- T've tried not to mention the poor'child that
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got killed in this case, but when the State proceeds on a
theory of transferred intent the case is between my client
and you've got to .imagine as if J. D. or Beneco gets shot,

that's who the dispute is-from. Okay. BAnd, in fact, Mike

. Adams testified on the stand that he went in front of a
: maglstrate and 51gned a warrant and_swore that . their theory

‘is that my cllent was trylng to kill J. D. Hemphlll Where

is J. D. Hemphill? Oh, he's in Atlanta What° Why
haven t we looked for J. D. Hemphlll'> Where -is their ~- I

;:asked the offlcer and he said, "I don't know, that's not my

departmen " Well, you.know, that wasn't the last witness

_'they put up. - They had witness after witness to call up

"there to say, "Okay, here ls what. we've done to look for

Hemphlll, we have called this"™ —- they haven't done any of

,that, They drag people out Here all the time. They drag a

man from Oklahoma on a murder charge four or five months
back but they re saylng they can't find J.-D Hemphlll in -~
Atlanta? Have they plcked up a bit of- ev1dence but yet

they want you to conv1ct»my ¢lient of murderlng hlm in

‘ essence because he' s the transferred 1ntent° You know, I'm

-'going. to sit-down in a mlnute because I. know you get tired

of hearing me talk but let me leave you w1th thlS In a
lot of ways your job is both the easiest job 1n the system
and the hardest. Here is-the easy part, the easy part is

you listen to what the Judge says about the law and you
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listen to what the Judge says about presumption. of

innocence and you listen to what the Judge 'says about
burden of éroof and. younlisten to what the Judge says about
proof beyond a reasonable doubt including the fact that
they ve got to prove the absence of self—defense beyond any
reasonable doubt and that's the easy part clearly "Here is

the hardypart.- The hard part is you've got to write it
"down and you've got to sign it and you've got to come back

out here. . And llsten, I understand I've tried not to’ talk.

about the child in thlS case, ‘but listen, 1t 1s awful
Okay. And T know the family is out there, I know they're °
upset, I heard them crylng durlng the case and it is awful’

and I - my chlldren aren't that young anymore but' I can't

.1mag1ne what they re. gorng through But here 1s the deal

ﬂrlt's not your jOb to rlght that wrong,  it's not your job to

say whether or not somebody has to pay for this, it's your

jOb to say whether the State has met their burden of proof

beyond a- reasonable doubt and they haven't, and you took an -

oath to do it. Okay I know you didn' t ask for thlS jOb

“but when you came 1n here, I don't know if you remember, ;

the clerk stood you up and.made you raise your hand and

agree to follow the law, the law that that mar is g01ng to

'glve you And when you do that I don't expect you to enjoy

it, I don’t expect you to llke 1t, but I expect you to

follow it because you promlsed and do it and find him not

633
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guilty. Thank you. ‘ :
THE COURT: Okay. dJurors, we're goiné into the final -

lbhase of the'trial Can:y'all hear7 I can't tell whether
;the nacrophone projects or not, normally I don t have any |

- problenlwlth people hearrng but if you'can 't hear hold. your
" hand and I'll)get'down like‘this. -Wefre into;thevfinal
'phaSe of the trial, jurors I'm.going'to instrhct'you on
the law, you "1l go back welgh all ‘of the facts and return _
vaerdlcts on these two 1ndlctments ~The 1nd1ctments are not
Vhev1dence.4 The fact that the 1ndlctments have been 1ssued~
.zand that Anthony Rodrlekus Carter has been charged.w1th the
;'comm1551on of crlmes create no 1nference of gullt agalnst
4h1m,at all As I explalned to you. at the start he entered
‘I‘the trlal presumed innocent, a presumptlon of. 1nnocence is
- a real substantlal rlght that every defendant has |
glrrespectlve of the charge agalnst the defendant. There is

,absolutely no burden on a defendant to prove. that he is- not"

gu1lty In order to obtaln a conv1ctlon of some charge

contalned w1th1n these 1nd1ctments 1t is 1ncumbent on the

State to convince 12 jurors - the orlglnal 12 -

4‘unan1mously beyond a reasonable doubt . that he commltted a

crime embraced w1th1n these 1ndlctments, or crlmes embraced

‘within these 1nd1ctments. Now, we've got two alternate

jurors, y'all pay -attention. When T conclude these

instructions I'm going to ask the jury to step out assuming
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‘the original 12 are st‘il‘l'w»ith us if you would stay in the

courtroom at that p01nt Mr. Foreman, it takes a unanimous

verdict, your vote Counts no more than any- other juror but

somebody has to pres1de over the deliberations. If

questions occur durlng deliberatlons if you would write

them down w1th some specrflclty I will confer with the
attorneys and see 1f T can answer the questions. I'm going

to go over evidence in. just~aAiittle bit but.just to

'forestall some questions.  As. I'have-briefly illuded to at

the start I'm giving you the law in “the abstract I'm
actually prevented from oommentlng on ‘the facts other than
to tell you: who the partles are and who the victim is and
thlngs llke that, so don't send back a questlon should we
belleve =le) and 80, that's g01ng to be your function. Whlle
you dellberate you will have w1th you everythlng that has
been formerly 1ntroduced into ev1dence as an eXhlblt Now,
a few things were marked as Court S exhlblts, one of those
I just marked the gun as a Court's -exhibit, I thlnk y'all
don't really need the gun back there but if y'all want to

see the. gun you send me a note and I'11 brlng you back out

and we will check and make sure it's not locaded and we can

- pass it around. I don't know what good that wili,do. It

has been introduced into evidence, I just blocked it from

- .going back to you. Y'all‘gathéred that the things aren't

always initially introduced into evidence like photographs
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and reports, first they were marked for identification

because it has got to be connected that it came from point

A to point B to point C and then finally it wésﬂmoved into

evidence. . Couple of things were just left as.Court's

exhibits, those won't go-back but you can consider them if

* yow saw something during the trial: Couple ‘of things that

you saw were not 1ntroduced 1nto eV1dence, for 1nstance

basically all of the officers pull out some notes they made

- and look at them-just tonrev1ew txme, date, something llke

‘that.” You can consider what they testified to from any of

those notes but the ﬁotes were not introduced into evidence
and we can'p‘send'them-back.s‘In-addition, we can't add any
wipnesses to the case, we can't ask anymore quéstioﬁs. It
méy be that you - really wanted fo ask a~particularvwitness
one addltlonal questlon, sorry, can't ask any addltlonal
questlons. You have to decide the case based upon the
admitted . ev1dence. ‘Now, as I explained to you a couple of
tlmes~and.I nyg01ngAto go over,lt, but,remember I'm going

toitry to-keep. it- at brief as I.can but we're talking .-

-serious charges so I can't keep it really short. ,Y'all are

<jg01ng to. get 1nstructed on-more.. law: than most people do and

I can't really tell you how you should apply it to the -

facts other than to give you the law and tell you you have

" to find .the facts and apply them to the law, but I get it

now. I'm not going'to’send the indictment back, again it's
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not evidenoe;'.This indictment‘alleges'that Anthony
Rodriekus Carter around May 3, 2010 feloniously, willfully

" and of his malice aforethought killed and murdered Jaylen

Jackson by shooting her with a handgun and she did die as a
direct result thereof. In order - to obtaln a conv1ctlon ‘
under this indictment it's incumbent on the State to prove
beyond a reasonable doubt that it occurred in Lancaster
County among other thlngs, the shootlng, not necessarlly
the death, but that she was shot. T explalned to you

marder includes charges.—— or lesser—lncluded charges of

.voluntary'manslaughter, involuntary manslaughter. On this

partlcular 1nd1ctment four forms of potential verdicts -
would be submltted to you; the order in Wthh they re

submltted has no bearlng, you ve got to do 1t one way or

) another, generally it depends on who prepares 1t " If the-

AState prepared it, they put gullty flrst, if the defense .

prepared it they would.put not gullty first. But the
bottom line you would pass on that 1nd1ctment that I just

went over with you, weigh all of facts in the case -and

~dec:Lde whether the State has met 1ts burden of proof on the

issue of first murder, elther gullty or not gullty in your
mlnd If you him guilty you would stop there, if you find
him not gullty you' would stop there. If you found -- I'1l
instruct you on voluntary manslaughter -— you pass and

discuss those elements. If you find him guilty you stop
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1 there,;if you‘fiud him not guilty you stop there. If you
2 found him not guilty —— and I'm not saying you should find
_ 3w him.guilty of anything,_I‘think you understand that -- if
4 you find him not guilty ofgmurder, not guilty of ‘
5 manslaughter you may censider involuntary manslaughter, and
6 I'll instruct you. that-in just a little bit‘ If you find
h 7 " he's not gullty of that he's not gullty of anything and A
81 your verdlct would be just not’ gullty But-again, I'm not
9 suggestlng that you find. hlm.gullty but you can find him
lp not guilty otzmurder, that does not mean he's- not guilty of |
11, one of the other charges, you would have to decide straight
12 79n down as:I explaihed‘them to you.' Yougeould find‘him not .
.13 quilty of any of these three charges; murder, uoluntary‘
14 manslaughter, 1nvoluntary manslaughter before you could
15 decide npt,gullty. You don't have a form not. gullty by
16 murder, not guilty by manslaughter and so forth, just one
17 -hpt guilty‘fdrm;“ahd.ifuyou‘findwhim,notAguilty;You-have to -
18 find.hhm not quilty-of the_three:charges'embraced within
19 'the murder indictment. The second indictmentvis'for'
‘20‘ possession of a weapon of a handgun*while committing a
21 violent crime. In oxder-to. return a verdlct of guilty on
22 that charge you would have to find that he was guilty of
23 .commlttlng a violent crime, and I instruct you that murder
24 and manslaughter_are crimes of violence, or\violent'crimes,
25

involuntary manslaughter is not. So in order to find him
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guilty of possession of a weapon while committing a violent

crime you must first find him.guilty,of either murder or

voluntary manslaughter If you find him not guilty'or

guilty .of 1nvoluntary manslaughter, you can't flnd him

guilty of,possessrng a~weapon~wh1lewcommlttlng atv1olent‘-

crime. Of course, the State has to provelhe‘possessed the

weapon, you know, the crime of violence was committed -

- beyond a reasonable doubt along with that. Now, how do you

~ reach your verdict? You weigh all of the evidence rn the

case; that includes testrmony, ‘that 1ncludes photographs,

- that includes reports put in, everything that has-been
| admltted The attorneys‘worked pretty hard. We could have’

\been here two weeks admlttlng all of those documents and.

plctures that came in if we hadn t done that outsrde of

»your presence and got everythlng marked so it came in

%

during the'trial. To the extent that T sustained the

~objection you don't speculate as to what the answer would

have been to a question denied, but anything that came in;

testimony, -exhibits, photographs, you'cén consider and give

it such‘welght as you feel it's entltled_to because you

jurors are- the fact finders. All I do is presrde over the

trial,‘make evidentiary rulings and then instruct you on

the law again, in the abstract, not fact specific which.

makes it harder for you. If I could I could tell you if
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‘You.find.A and B then you could find C but I can't do any

of that, so something that is not evidence that you could

- consider obv1ously would -be summations ‘and opening
‘statements by the State and the- defense They ‘are entitled

for you to consider that position, the fact that either of

them suggests something to you does not bind youﬂto'draw

“that same“ccnclusion, but that is up to y0u} AEvidence'

generally speaking is of two types, direct ev1dence and

“circimstantial evidence. Circumstantial ev1dence, it 31ts
on the same footlng as dlrect ev1dence as far as -you're

- concerned, one is not preferred over the other. Direct

evidence is where somebody‘testlfles to something he'Or she

‘has observedAthrough the senses, as 1 explained it to start

with it might not be true but that's testimony. on that
issue. Clrcumstantlal evidence is where you take a fact or
proven fact and- from that you infer the existence of
another fact. Of course,'your 1nferences{have to be

reasonable based upon all of the surrounding Circumstances,

- Now, ybu jurcrs.are.gOiné-to pass onvthe:credibility of all
of the witnesses that . testified I'm.going to give you a

- few rules, I'm not dlrectlng 1t to a partlcular w1tness,

theyrapply to.all of the witnesses. Among the things that
you would consider certainly would be the appearance or the
demeanor of a witness. Cbviously you would consider

whether a witness was hesitant or forthright in answering
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questions. You would consider any interest or bias that a

witness had in the outcome of the proceedlngs, the
opportunlty that’ the witness has to see, hear or cbserve
what the witness testified to, that' S‘Certalnly a factor
you could take into account, whether testrmony from a
particular witness in your mind becomes. stronger or is madev
weaker.by testimony or other evidence in the case is
entirely up to you. We don't count witnesses, jurors,'in
court proceedings. Tn other words the srde with the most -

witnesses doesn't mean anythlng because you jurors are.

v.entltled to pick and choose portlons of testlmony that you
~ pelieve believable. In other words, ‘you can believe one

.w1tness versus many or the other way around. and you are not

bound to accept 1n its entlrety the testlmony of any

‘partlcular w1tness as I juSt 'i116ded to. You can belleve
any portion:ofrthe witneSs"testimony but then you could

-give that believable testimony such weight as YOu feel it's

entitled to. Durlng the trial, jurors, several people
testlfled.who had prev1ously had rin-ins with the law.
Generally speaking 1f a person has a crlmlnal record there
are exceptlons that you are 1nterested 1n, but if a person
generally has a criminal record 1t ‘can be.brought out when
they testify if they have a criminal record. The fact that
you have ‘a criminal record certalnly does not prevent '

anyone from testifying but it's for you jurors to dec1de to
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give it such weight as the prior record of 'a person if you

feel it would impact on'that credibility, again that's up

“to. In addition, jurors;,during'the trial certain people

were quallfled as an expert The fact that we qualified as
an individual’ an as expert does not blnd you to accept

their testlmony,elther, they are subject to the same

" credibility test as*any other witness.on,demeanor,

ConsistenoyL inconsistency,iso:forth. What they are |
allowed to do,.though; once ‘qualified a31an~expert.is they
have to establish that through education, training,‘WOrk
experlence or -a .combination of those factors that they have
requlred more knowledge in a partlcular fleld than you or I
have then they.can give opinions within that fleld of
expertrse. Before you can accept any oplnlon glven.by an
expert the opinion has to be given to a reasonable degree
of certainty w1th1n the fleld in Wthh the expert was
quallfled © Now, : the expert does not have to say: that every

: trme they say somethlng, y all understand, they donit have

,‘to say I was: born in Bamberg, South Carollna toa-

reasonable ‘degree . of certainty, and then they say I have

' got this and. T- presented my OplnlODS after that it is such

and”such* if 1t‘s not: to a reasonable degree‘of certalnty

'they can't be questloned about it further But even though

they testified as experts to thlngs to a reasonable degree

of certainty you are not bound to it, that is up to you.
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You can consider underlying facts under which an expert
bases his or her opinion. . Now, the defendant in this case
did not testify. He has absolutely no'obligationvon his
part to testlfy You did see a couple of hours.of
v1deotape, you can view that just llke he was testlfylng in

person, you saw it. So the fact that he actually did not -

. take the stand creates no inference of guilt against him at

all. You cen consider what you saw from the video, and I
have a video up heren a couple of times of just a little
blur, we didn't prepare —— they had cut down a few

things —— T ¥now you don't think they sped it up, but they
limited it a little bit and they just ran over some things,:

don t send back a questlon saying, "We want to see when it

. was run over." You can con81der anythlng that you saw from

'the video and that you heard from.the v1deo, but to just —

that's just llke me sustaining an objectlon, although I
didn’ t edit 1t, the attorneys got -together and agreed on
what they were 901ng to present from the.video of the
defendant to you. Now, that's ba31cally all of the
prellmanary thlngs on how you reach your dec131ons I've
mentloned it one other time as you recall one prev1ous
time, that the defendant was also charged.Wlth posse831on
of a weapon, that s no longer 1n front of you. He pled
QUlltY’tO that., I nlauthorlzed to tell you that that was a

separate charge'other than possession whlle committing a
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.crime, that was just adding. He pled guilty to that,

that's removed from your consideration, and the fact that

he pled gullty to that charge creates no inference of guilt

“on these other charges which he's facing. Okay You are

not:to'discuss that, that:is out of your way. Now, here

. comes the difficult part.. - I need you to listeh carefully

because understand, I have to instruct you on the law in

the abstract> I don't think I n1g01ng to even go over

. other.:than the State has got to conv1nce you beyond a

~ reasonable doubt on the weapons charge, the elements of

that, you understand what a weapon is, 1t,was either

possessed during the commission of a violent crime or not.’

If you need more instruction on that you can send back a

note and T .can give it, I.think y'all understand that. You

have to decide the case, jurors, based upon the admitted»

-evidence which you jurors are going-to pass on. You're

going to weigh;all,of therevidence in the case, obviously

certain witnesses testified and made inconsistent

, statements.' The fact that- they made inconsistent

statements does not mean yOﬁ shoulg.objeot to everything

'that_aﬂy'partioularawitness says, it's just as I told you

earlier you—can,pick and'choose portions of. the statements
that you feel are believable. Inconéistent.statements that
person makes certalnly can be consrdered by you in

evaluating’the believability of the entlre statement, but
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again, that's up to you. The fact that they made
1ncon813tent statements is just another factor that you can
pass on on credibility.. So you welgh all of the ev1dence
in the case, direct evidence and circumstantial ev1dence,
photogrephs,_reportsﬁ believable testimony, then you decide

whether the State has convinced you beyond avreasonable

doubt that the defendant is guilty of murdetr, manslaughter

or involuntary manslaughter. Now, jurors, I've been. over

it a couple of times with you about beyond a reasonable

doubt. In the simplest definition, reasonable doubt is the
klnd of doubt that would cause an ordlnary person to
h951tate to act in conducting his or her dally things..
G01ng just a little further, beyond a reasonable doubt

means the ev1dence must be presented that leaves you firmly

? conv1nced of the gullt of the accused 1f you Te not firmly.-

.conv1nced of the guilt of the accused after weighing all of

the euidence in the case you must find the defendant not

guilty. Murder; Jurors; murder is the unlawful killing of

" -one human being by another human being with malice

aforethought expressed or inferred. Now, malice, jurors,
denotes wickedness, evilness. Expressed malice is -where a

person indicates through verbal or overt action that he or

. shé bears i1l will toward another person; "I hate you," if

somebody says that that indicates that they may have malice

' there. Malice is.a term of legal art actually and it
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denotes wickedness and excuses just cause, there is no just

.cause. So malice can be.inferred, jurors, if it is proved

. beyond a reasonable‘doubt that there was a willful,

deliberate and intentional doing of an unlawful act without

-just ‘cause ‘or excuse. When malice is not expressed, where -

it is inferred you take into account .all of the surrounding

circumstances that ended up in.someone'dying. You take

everything that bears on that issue and, of course,. then
you're in the area of circumstantial evidence, and any

circumstantial evidence is just evidence in the case and

you give it such weight as you feel it is,entitled to. Thel,
State has to conVince you beyond a reasonable doubt that

malice ex1sted before you can find an. 1nd1v1dual guilty of

,murder even though you. find that the defendant kllled

someone. Both murder and voluntary manslaughter, which I
will come to in just a minute, involve criminal 1ntent

Okay. If you don't intend to klll someone -it can't be

.murder, it's got to be something,else,.of course,,you have

to understand - And voluntary manslaughter is the -same

-situation, you have to have a fixed intent to klll someone.

You.recognlze the action you ‘take might . result in the death
of another before you could find a person quilty of murder
or‘the second illustration of voluntary manslaughter. When
I get to_involuntary manslaughter it does not require any

proof of criminal intent because that's not part of it,
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it's the unlntentlonal.killinglef another'perscnlA
Manslaughter is the unlawful killing of one human being by
another human without malice in the sudden heat.of passion

upon a sufficient legal provocatlon The. difference, of

.. course, petween murder and‘manslaughter is. that malice

exists in murder, malice does not exist in manslaughter. I
can't really give you any further instruction on what , -

constitutes malice other than I did, it's just legal

- terminology. I have to give it to you in the abstract. I

can't go over any factors thatvﬁlght or might not bear on

the presence of the absence of malice in this particular

. case SO don't send back a question on that. And

involuntary manslaughter is where a defendant did’

unlawfully unlntentlonally klll a v1ct1nu .and -that the

defendant s conduct was crlnunally negllgent whlch is

‘deflned 1n the section of the code of laws as reckless

dlsregard of the safety of others. Of course, weapons 1s a

dangerous instrumentality and:- if you don't use them’

properly bad results, of course, occur. Criminal -

negligence is more than just simple negligenCe, it's a
onscious awateness that you knew or should have known that
a bad result could result in the cause of the action that
you took; firing in a house, flrlng in the woods. Now, I'm
coming back to all of these 1n<just a little bit. But in

the inuoluntary manslaughter sltuation, which is the last
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one, a party cannot avail himself or herself of involuntary
manslaughter as a possible result if they're engaged in the

commission of ‘a felony at the time that somebody -

-unintentioﬁally gets-killed,-and while ‘the defendant is not

charged there's evidence in the case that he could have

. been guilty of .a felony, not saylng that he was but that 1s»

up- to you, whlch is called presenting and p01nt1ng a

- firearm. It's just a 51mple statute that says it.is

‘against - the law to present .0r p01nt a flrearm at another

person whether the gun is loaded or unloaded. You can
understand, if somebody'points a gun at you you don't say,
"Man, is that thing loaded?" That's- just against the law.

_But if you have the rlght for instance in self—defense to

defend yourself you are not gullty of pointing and

presentlng which brlngs us to self—defense down the whole

_-gamut. Self—defense, jurors - well, befOre I get to

« self—defense since .T don t have thlngs written down I try

to:do thlngs in a= loglcal manner. Obv1ously there's no
ev1dence in the case — L told you I couldn't talk to all
of the facts but T will tell you that there ‘was not any

.~ intent. on. anybody's part to-klll the~three~yearaold child,

I think you. know that, what we're talklng about is
transferred intent. So if a person is trylng to commlt
murder they would have been guilty of murder if they would
have shot A and they shot B inadvertently,tthey're guilty
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of murder if the other elements of mirder were proved
beyond a reasonable doubt. The same thing with‘the other

charges. Okay. Transferred intent applies to théxthree

charges; manslaughter, voluntary.and involuntary and murder

and also on the issue of self-defense if you're justified

in the self-defense somebody else you're standing in the
position of, other party and so fortﬁ. But the defendant,
of course, does not have to prove he is not-guilty of
anything as I,héve expléined to you; if there is evidence
in the case that a person acted in self-defense it's
incumbent on the Stafe'torprove beyond a reasonéble.doubt
that the person did not éct in self-defense. 1In this case
the'State relies in part on the theory of the hand~6f one
is the hand of all, and that ba31cally says-if two or more
people - in the area called accompllce llablllty, “two or -

more people are Jjointly committing an unlawful act if one

is guilty-of the unlawful act everyoné participating‘on the
lawful act is guilty. You have to be aware that the lawful

" act —— unlawful act is g01ng on or you should have known an

unlawful act would have dire consequences then 1f you're

part1c1pat1ng in 1t. The simplest example is if one person

or two people rab a store, both people are guilty of armed
robbery, not one guilty of armed robbery and oné of strong
armed robbery which is just not required of a weapon. If

two people and only one has a gun are engaged in an act in

649
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which somebody is killed, if they're both aiding and
abetting each other, participating in the~situation
together, hand of one is“the hand of all. If one is guilty
of murder, both are guilty of murder, if one is guilty of

‘manslaughter and s0 forth. The hand of one is the hand of

‘all..fBut youAhave to find that the-person who did not
shoot, , for instance was aiding and abetting the person who
did shoot, so the hand of one is the hand of all. -Now,.
self-defense.” Four thithshave to be established by the
evidehce, and when I.sa§ that I mean convince yoﬁkjurors.'
The first is that a person who acted in self-defense, shot

in self—defense was not at :fault iﬁ bringing about the

1mmed1ate dlfflCultleS or the necessity of taklng a human

llfe. Now, ummedlate dlfflcultles, ‘we re talking about at
the time of a confrontatlon, we're notltalklng ‘about
anythlng in thlS case that predates on.the issue of at-
fault in brlnglng on the controversy We're not talklng

about anythlng that predates. the date that the shooting.

‘ occurred, you can con81der anything that happened before )

) other 1ssues ‘but not on that partlcular issue. At the time

that the fatal: shot waswflred the person making the fatal.
shot believed in good ‘faith that he was in imminent danger
of sustaining serious bodily injury or losing his life.

And third, that if he felt that he was in{imminent danger
of sustaining a great bodily injury or losing his life‘thatb
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an ordihary reasonable’persoh”faoed‘with the same

circumstances would have also entertained the same belief,

in other words, you can't just say, "I believe he's going

to shoot me, bang, he's dead.™ It has to be the same

situation. If you pht any reasonable pereon:in a situation

'that the shooter —— that the evidence indicates might have

acted in self—defense there has to be a reasonable

: assumptlon on the part of the person that did the shootlng

' pefore self-defense applies. Now, self—defense, if

established by the evidence, the defendant doesn't have to

prove it, the State has to prove that the person didn't act

in self-defense, is an»absolute defense to any crime
embraced within the particularvindictment. Iif a

defendant —- and we're talklng transferred 1ntent here,

v

yrall’ understand that — if the ‘defendant is someorie that -

he was shooting or attemptlng to shoot at was Oon common

ground ‘the evidence must establlsh that the defendant had

no ablllty to retreat, in other words, he had to act before

he~retreated, he ‘had to flre before he retreated to not

have ~- or he nught have lost his life if he hadn' t taken_

.eva51ve action at the time of ‘the shooting back is a normal

thing to do. Now, if a person is entitled to shoot they!' re

~entitled to keep shooting until the danger has'passed.
Again, I can't tell you about the facts specifically, but I

can tell you that.a person never has to wait until somebody -

651
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else has the drop on them to shoot. 1In other words, if

~you're coming down on me I don't have to wait until you

" pull the trigger and hope you miss ano shoot back. So who

shot first is an issue‘in the case but it is not

dispositive of the case, You jurors on the issue of

self-défense have to:Weigh all of ‘availing circumstances.

NOW}'when:you're:deciding whether the defendant acted

‘reasonable you take'into accoﬁnt any prior confrontations

or -prior dlfflcultles between” the partles, that Can -be

~hcon81dered by you Any prlor dlfflcultles between parties.

can affect the person s belief to what klnd of 51tuatlon
they're in so that's just another factor in the case. You

welgh all of the factors in the case, welgh them, . glve them

- such welght-as they re entltledlto,.you de01de whether the

State has met its burden of proof on any of . the indictmerts

L and the charges embraced withiﬁ‘the indictment -In order
to- obtaln a verdlct on anythlng -the State has got-to .

convince. you' that the defendant, Mr.. Carter, is: gullty
beyond a reasonable doubt of that charge. .The weapons
charge is pretty self explanatory, you can't find. him

guilty of that-unless. you find him guilty of either murder

or voluntary manslaughter. If you find him not guilty or

guilty of involuntary mansiaughter he's not guilty of
possession of a weapon while engaged in a violent crime.

On murder, in order to obtain a conviction you first
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eraluate all ofathe evidence"presented; you Weigh‘it,“youv"

find that if the State has convinced you beyond a

reasonable doubt mnrder was committed, after weighing the

evidence presented~on the issue of self-defense and the

State's burden of prov1ng the person didn't act in

‘self~defense, if you reach a unanimous verdict of gullty

you would stop at that point. 1In ‘order to do that you
would have'to find that'the State'has convinced you beyond
a reasonable doubt that the defendant committed murder
either’ dlrectly or through transferred intent, . hand of one,
hand of’all. 'Now, if you decided that the defendant is. not
gniity of murder, you don‘t'stop.at that point,. then you
would cons1der voluntary’manslaughter which is the next’

most serlous charge embraced within the charge of murder

'7And on that charge you would con81der whether the State has

convinced you con81der1ng the - evidence of self—defense that
the State must agaln prove beyond a reasonable doubt that
the defendant dld not act in it, you would find whether 1f

murder: —- if a hom101de dld occur you would have to de01de

whether the defendant 1n the hand of one, hand of all acted

under sudden heat and.passron upon sufflclent legal

provocation. In order for the State to convince you beyond

a reasonable doubt the defendant is guilty of voluntary

manslaughter you take and weigh all of the evidence and

apply it to the law that T Have given you,dand if you find

653
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they have you would find hlm.gu1lty of voluntary
manslaughter,~1f.not you would consider involuntary
manslaughter: I think I'veaexplaihed,that‘to you .that.
involuntary manslaughter.is .the unlawful killing of one
human<being by another‘unintentiohally through‘crindnal
negligencerwhile not engaged in the commlssioh;of’a felony.
You weigh -self-defense ongthat charge also. 41% you find

that the State has not found him: -- proved to you beyond a.

‘preasonable'doubt that. he is guilty of any‘Charge ‘embraced

: w1th1n this 1ndlctment of murder you would just find him

not gullty And.agaln, I don't know that I told you, the

order in which thlngs are typed has no bearing,‘you have to

_type them some'way. You could have Startedtout at the top;

”'guilty of murder or guilty of?involuntary, guilty of

voluntary or so forth but that looked llke a logical way to

present 1t to you,glt has no bearing at all on your

.de0131on, the order 1n whlch they re typed I thlnk you do

understand that it takes a unanimous decision of 12 jurors

) to reach a. verdlct +.I do not requlre 12. signatures,

though only the foreperson 81gns it. - I do not need for

you-to sign except one tlme on the four charges, not

guilty; gullty-of,murderyggu1lty of voluntary -manslaughter,
guilty of involuntary manslaughter,'you check off which
ones of the verdicts you form, you jurors agree. On the

weapons charge he was found not guilty or guilty, you can
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circle or you can check it does not matter, or you can

- underline as long as we know it, you don't check, circle or

underline one so we will know the verdict you have reached.
I told you earliet you could take notes, somebody is taking
notes, yoq/need to just leave them in the'COurEroom.‘ You
can take them back after the trial is over, again just’
don't take them back to. the jury room. While you
deliberate you will have with you all of the documents that'
have been introduced, it ndght.take awhile to gather them
up and bring them back. Jurors, it has been a long week,
Serious charges. You have to decide the case based on
evidence presented you,. don't decide it based on sympathy
or anythlng like that, just evaluate the case and 1t S
going to take you awhlle to go over all of the testlmony
Don't talk about it yet, T might have left somethlng out or' .-
might have misspoke, it won't be the first time. But 1f
y'all wood ease out. o

, (The Jjury left the courtroom. )

" THE COURT: Historically I don't keep the alternate

.jurors around, if y all want to keep them we —

MR. LIFSEY: T don't have a preference on that. I do
have one issue regardiné‘charge. | _ |

THE COURT: I"11 cover that with you, I first want to
cover this.

MR. BARFTELD: ‘T don't have any particular need for
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them to stay as long as —-- you didn't ask but I assume all
12 back are okay, 'nobody ‘is feeling bad or anything?

.- THE COURT: -They all looked pretty good. Ijhave never
had to use an alternate but -- we get reversed if you use
alternates ‘Yes, sir?

MR. LIFSEY: My concern is, JUdge, I didn’'t hear you

advise them that 1f there's a reasonable doubt as to the .

greater offense versus a lesser offense they resolve it in

,my cllent's favor.

© © THE COURT: Yeah, I didn't tell them'that. I will be
happy to do.that. , j |

MR. LIFSEY: That's all I want.

THE COURT: Solicitor, you don't have anything?

MR. BARFIELD: No, .sir. |

(The jury retutned to the.courtroom )

- THE COﬁRT .Okay. Jurors, after I've given
1nstructlons they re entitled to make objections and ask
for other things, too,,they only had one and»they re
correct on it, I didn't tell you somethiog I should have
told you about reasonable doubt.' When ‘we were talking .
about the murder charge- if you —-- going over all of the
eﬁidence and. testimony and»etefything on the murder charge
ifvyou don't think he is not guilty but you don't know
whether he's guilty of murder or manslaughter he gets the
benefit of the doubt, you would have to find him guilty of



W 0 N oy oW N -

NN NN N = R e R s e s
G & W N B O w ® N0 O & W N = o

677
JURY CHRRGE

‘the lesser charge of voluntary manslaughter because the ™

State hadn't convinced you beyond a reasonable doubt that
he was guilty of murder. I'm not suggesting you find him

guilty of anything. The second thing, if you find the

‘State hadn't convinced you beyond a reasonable doubt that

he was guilty of murder and they haven't really convinced

you that he's guilty of voluntary manslaughter if you think

he is gquilty of involuntary ménslaughter, voluntary or

involuntary, he's entitled the benefit of the doubt and you -

would find him guilty of involuntary. I'm not suggesting

-you find him guilty of anything, it's just he gets the

benefit of the doubt if you're not firmly convinced he is
guilty of a higher offense, he gets the benefit of the

lesser offense if you find the State has convinced you-

beyond a reasonable doubt thét;hefs guilty of some charge

in the indictment. Okay.
' (The jury left the courtroom.)
THE COURT: State ready to receive the verdicté
 MR. BARFIELD: ° State is ready.
THE COURT: Defense? |
MR. LIFSEY: Yes, sir.
THE COURT: We've got victims and victim's family in
the courtroom, they've shown great restraint so far, we

don't know what the verdict is going to be so try to hold

it down whatever it is when they come back with a verdict.
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You can bring them in.

(The jury returned to the courtroom.)

THE COURT: Mr. Foreman, has the jury reached verdicts

-and have you sigred the verdict form on the matter

submitted to you?
THE JUROR: ¥es, sir, I have.
| THE COURT: If you would, then, hand it to the bailiff
and the clerk. I know you've‘been~back there practicing
like you see it on TV but that's not the way we do it.

THE CLERK: We, the jury;ias to indictment number
2010-GS-29-1000, murder, unanimously find the defendant,
Anthony Rodriekus Carter, guilty'of:murder. We, the jury,
as to indictment number 2010—GS—29—1001"posseséion of a

flrearm during the commission of a violent crlme,

"unanlmously find the defendant, _Anthony Rodrlekus Carter,

guilty. Slgned, Darrell Carnes, foreperson, dated
Nevember'lO, 2011. Ladies and geﬁtie@en.of the jﬁry, if
this be your verdict so say you all by the ralslng of your
rlght hands. Let the record reflect all jurors ralsed
their'riéht'hands.

THE COURT: Anything else regquired of the jury from

 the State?

MR. BARFIELD: Nothing from the State. .
THE COURT: Defense?
MR. LIFSEY: Requesting‘to'ﬁoll the jury.
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THE COURT: All right. Jurors; yoﬁr’clerk is going to
ask you two questions, was that your verdict and is that
your verdict, he's not talking about when.you went back
theré to start deliberating, he's talking about after it
was written. Okay. '

_ATHE CLERK: Thank you, Your Honor. - Darrell Cérnes)

foreperson, is.this your verdict and is this still your

: verdict?

" * THE JUROR: ‘Yes.>
~ THE CLERK: Pémela}Massey, is this your verdict and is
this still your verdict? | |
THE JUROR: Yes. | | o
'THE CLERK:. Shelly-Yéﬁng, ié this your verdict and is

this still”your verdict?

THE JUROR: Yes.

' THE CLERK: Kelvin Deese, is this your verdict and is

this still your verdict?

. THE JUROR:* Yes. : o
':THE CLERK%  Henry Beckham,: is this yourvverdiét and.is
this still your verdict? . »‘
. THE JUROR:._Yeah. - P | |
' THE CLERK: Cheryl Lbng,vis this your véfdict'and is
this still your vérdict?
THE JUROR: Yes.
THE CLERK: Tanya Eller, is this your verdict and is
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still your verdict?
THE JUROR: Yes.
THE CLERK: Jeff Hinson, is this your-vérdict and is
stiil your verdict?
THE JURCR: Yes, sir.
THE CLERK: Barbara Haire, is this your‘verdict and ié
still your verdict? |

THE JUROR: Yes, sir.

THE CLERK: Anthony Sane, is this your verdict and is

still your verdict?

- THE - JUROR Yes.

THE CLERK Victoria Langley, is this your verdict and

is this still your verdict?

“THE JUROR: Yes.

' THE CLERK: Lana Cook, is this your verdict and is

this

still ybur verdict?
THE JUROR: Yes, sir.

THE CLERK: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay. Solicitor, I think we are will Just

defer sentencing ——

MR. BARFIELD: I was.'going to request that, yes, sir.

THE COURT: -—— since we have another case pending.
MR. BARFIELD: Yes,'sir, thank you.
{The jury was dlsmlssed )

MR LIFSEY Judge, I would make a motlon for a new
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trial based on the same motions and grounds that I stated

- for motions for a directed verdict.

THE COURT: Okay. .Bnd T will deny them today but I
will give you a few more days to-come up with some more if
you can make them before the end of next week. We will
crank 1t up again Monday. -

(END OF TRIAL PROCEEDINGS. )

(SENTENCING HEARING' ON' NOVEMBER 17, 2011. )

-MR. BARRFIELD: Your Honor, we are obviously here on

sentencing of Mr. Carter. He plead guilty to possession of

" a pistol by a peison con#icted of a crime of violence and

the jury.found-him guilty of murder Andlpossession of a

firearm, probably don't need to tell yoﬁ,énything else

about the facts of the case. I will tell you his record

" when we are ready and Rodriana Cunningham, thé mother of

the victim, is present and I am sure woﬁld like to.speak

- when you are ready to hear from her.

THE COURT: ‘Well, she can come upfandlspeak and you

can:téll~me‘thé recoidt

MR. BARFIELD: All right. I will tell you the record

first and then she will: step up to the microphone when I

flnlSh that '99 had a 01ty level resisting. arrest,
possession alcohol by a minor and a general sessions
resisting arrest in '99. He also had a magistrate court

level malicious injury to property and general sessions
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PWID crack.cocaine, got six months.on that in 2000. 2001
had a Shoplifting, two counts of shoplifting, another city
level resisting:arrest, giving false infprmation and a
third count of.shoplifting. 2001 he had -- it looksvlike
he got a 91 day sentence on that 2002 city'or magistrate
level resisting arrest and’simple assault. and battery, 2002
possession of‘marijuaﬁa and third or subsequent property
crime and attempted bu;glary Sécond degree. It looks like

he got -attempted burglary second degree and a burglary

third degreeisecond offense,'it'lobks like he“got'ah active

two year sentence on those. 2008 he had a possession of

crack and possession of cocaine, got active time on them

again. I believe that's it. Rodriana Lanisha Cunningham,
the victim's mom,xyou heard from her twice last week and

this week and she will step up to thekmicrcphoneAand

- address the Court.

THE WITNESS: Basically May 3rd they took my world
away by what they did to,my*daughtér."Jaylen-was three
years old, left defenseless in a. car. My'dAUghter:was —
got killed, was hit fbr a bullef that was meant for him and
that was totally unfair. Jaylen had her whole life ahead
of Heﬁ, she could haverbeen anything. She was going to be

something. He wasn't doing anything with his life- but-

" she's not here no more because of what they did. My baby-
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had to-die like that and that was so unfair and all I'm

left with is memories and I can't hold her, I won't see her

" no more. My baby won't get no more birthdays. He should

‘pay for what he did because what he did wasvignorant, it

was dumb and it could have been avoided. ILike T say,
Jaylen was a baby, she had no business where they had her

and all: I ask is that you don't :be lenlent And ‘he is not

' the victim, the only victim out there that nlght was Jaylen

That's. it. ‘ e ‘
: “jMR- BARFIELD: Couple‘of‘real quick comments fromjme,

Your Honor. And T don't need to'yell and.scream, you know

all about the case, I'm sure you probably have: a good idea
_ what you' re g01ng to do, I would simply say ‘that this young

. man has. got a pretty 31gn1f1cant record. Tt's not the

worst kind of stuff necessarily but it's juét a continuing
repeated course Qf“conduct, getting.hinself in trouble. He

had a recerd that prohibited him from having a gun, whether

it was his gun or not he gave a statement saying he

- possessed that gun, : he Qavegahstatement sayinéuhe.was out

there buying and’ selling doée.ffom.people.;-It‘svttagic,

. There is no way to fix it but.it is what it is and. I ask

. you to sentence him aecordingly.

MR. LIFSEY: Please the Court? Judge, my client is 29

ryears old. I will tell yoﬁ to begin with his mother, aunt

and uncle are not here at the moment but they were here all
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last -week, they sat out here, they were Jjust unable in this
sort of short notice_to get up here so I would ask you to
recognize he does have some family support. Your Honor, he

has.a GED, he has a child himself who is four years old

" that he pays child support for and all. Of course, he has

been locked up‘for I guess going on 18 months or so now
since: this happened. His work history is such he worked
mostly warehouse'work he has worked at Tyson up at Monroe,
he :has worked at the Grace Plant here in Lancaster Your

Honor, llke the sollcltor sald, you heard the whole trial

~and I don't thlnk I need to add much about the facts. It's

obv1ously a terrlble, terrlble tragedy I will tell you
that as awful as it is what I do think is falrly undlsputed

is that nobody 1ntentlonally killed the child in this case.

"As you “know” any sentence -—— you re bound by- law to glve hlm

a certaln sentence and any sentence you impose by law he

will have to do every day for. I would ask the Court to

con81der a 30 year sentence in this, I thlnk con31der1ng

the facts that would put him in. jall really until he is

 almost 60 years old And I certalnly —— there is no way to

repay Or no way to make up for the damage to the child but
I do think that's a significant sentence-and I would ask
the Court to consider it in thlS matter

THE'CQURT. Okay. .Mr. Carter, you have the right to

state whatever.

665
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THE DEFENDANT: I would like to say once again that

I'm sorry for what happeried that nlght but this whole two

years I've beencoming up here, I've been apologizing for
mostly what happened.- -I. ain't apologizing because T killed
no one, I never had a chance to shoot a gun.. It wasn't my

fault that: the gun got .shot. -~ I understand it was my beef :

"that nlght ‘but when I went down there. nothing was:.

1ntentlonally planned when I went out thers. I never

pointed’a gunAat,nobody.and“saidaI was'going to.do.

“anything. I- just trled to- squash the beef and yet I walked -
»away from it llke I always dld.when we had confrontatlons

| The whole 18 months I've been out .there I've done
-‘everythlng in my power to prove my 1nnocence, anythlng I

~ could. do'T trled my best but I can't make nobody believe me
- but me and hlm. I told the truth and I would like to say

I m sOrry to the family agaln but that's all T can say. I

, 1sh I:could brlng her back but - I can t. -

- MR. :LIFSEY: - And I ll tell you what he just sald

Judge -- and T w1ll hush ~-- is con31stent about w1th what

he has always told me I'1t tell you he ‘has been
remorseful for -the- fact that the child lost her. life from
the very beglnnlng in thls case. . ‘ .

THE COURT: What have you told him I could Sentenée
hlm to?. ! ‘

MR. LIESEY Up to life in prison, Judge, minimum 30
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_years, I believe that to be the statute[mglus I guess the

other charges sort of run in Wiﬁh,them.

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Carter, I've'beén'a'judge a
iéng time so I sentenced —- I don't know how many I
sentenced, 80 something'homicides one year in Richland when.
T was chief administrative judgé; They weren't all

murders; felony DUI's, hunting accident, whatever, anyway.

" And I've seen one hbmicide after another, I recognize you

didn't intend even if you shot, which is not for me to
decide, you didn't intend to hit the child but nothing I
can do brings back the child. When I started I would give
pedple life énd they would be out after 20 years, that Qas
just how it was. Now on a murder charge they've changed it

so that whatever sentence I impose on you you have to serve

. day for day. While you never. really did any serious crimes’

in the past you've got a string of crimes, as I heard third
and above shoplifting, so forth and so forth on and on,
involvement in. the drug trade. So on the murder charge I

sentence you to 32 years, give you credit. for the time you

"have been incarcerated. I sentence you to time served on '

the possession of a pistol by a person convicted of a
crime, and five years concurrent on the possession of the
weapon while committing a violent crime.

(End of trial proceedings.)
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I, the undersigned, Michael C. Watkins, Official

Court Reporter for the Sixth Judicial Circuit of the State

- of South. Carolina, do hereby cértify that the foregoing is

a true, accurate and complete transcript of record of the
pfoceedings.hadAand evidence ‘introduced in the trial of-
the captloned case, relative to appeal, in the Court of
General Sessions for Lancaster County, South Carollna, on
the 7th—10th days of November, 2011, ,

| I do further certify that I am>ﬁeither of kin,

counsel, nor interest to any party hereto,

'Aprii 13, 2012.

///@ //@g

Mlchael C. Watklns
Court Reporter
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The State of South Carolina
County of Lancaster

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER/DOA

M164308 (DOA-5-6-10).
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VERDICT

THE STATE
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Anthony Rodriekus Carter ot
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Maricp Hevens w4

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

indictment for
fMurder
SC Code: §16-3-10

CDR Code; 0116
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Lancaster County present upon theifoath: -

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) , 4 INDICTMENT -

. _ )
" COUNTY OF LANCASTER )

At a Court of General Sessions, convened on August 19,2010, the Grand Jurors of

. MURDER L
That Anthony Rodriekus Carter did at 2040 Athena Road, in Lancaster County‘on”
or about May 3, 2010, feloniously, willfully, and of his malice’ aforethought kill and

‘murder Jaylen Jackson by shooting her with a hangun and the victim did die as the

proximate causge thereof at Carolinas Medical Center in Charlotte, North Carolina, on
May 4, 2010, in violation of Section 16-3-10 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina.

Against the peace and dignity of the State, and contrary to the statute in such case

made and provided. : ' - @ 6 3

Douglas A. Barfield, Jr., SOLICITOR
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

) " IN'THE GOURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS
) : _

COUNTY OF )

LANCASTER . ‘
STATE ) INDICTMENT/CASE# ~ 2010.gs.. 29 . 1000
VS, } i ;

Anthony Rodriekus Carter ) AN : M164308

AKAT ) Date of Offense; 5/3/10

‘Rece: “ . Bex & Age; ) §C.Code §: . __ 16-3-10

poB: . . SS# e e ). CDR Code#; . ___ 0116 , .

Address:” __ s ) ‘ ' o

City, State, Zip: T arrmdram & AATAA ) SENTENCE SHEET

DL# * SID# ‘ ) .

**CDL Yes [ No [JCMV Yes [ ] No [] Hazmat Yes [ ] No [)

In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defendant whowas B GONVICTED QF or  [J PLEADS
TO: Murder '

In violation of § - 16-3-10 of the §.C. Code of Laws, bearing CDR Coda #0116
[0 NON-VIOLENT  EJ VIOLENT LJ SERIOUS Kl MOSTSERIOUS . [J Mandatory GPS [0 §*7-2545

‘ A : - (CSC wmlnor 1% or Lewd Act) :
The chargeis;  [X] Asindicted, [}  Lesser Included ORense, [Z]  Defendant Walvas Presentment to Grand Jury. . (def s inifigls)
‘The plas is; (J without Negotlations or Recommendation, [J  Negotiated Sentange, [ Recommendation by the State.

. . * . el \ i -
7 514 T T ), T Ol Sy
Sofi tw . SCBar# , Defendant Attorney’for Defendant~" 7 SC Bar#
, the Dafandgfiris’commitied to the ‘ﬁ" State Department of Corrections [} County Detention Cerdter,
for a determinate term of g daygiBEMhs/vears or [ under the YouthTul Offender Act not to exceed : years =

and/or to pay a fine of § ; plovided that upon the service of days/months/years and or payrment

of § . » plus costs and assessments as applicable*; the balance is suspendsd with probation for

months/years and subject to. South Caralina Pepartment of Probation, Parole and Pardon Setvices standard condifions of pr"ubaticm. which are

incrporated by referance. R .
ONCURRENT or—T—GONSEGUTIAR o Sentence on:  Ja art. gt €A it i .

The Dafendsnt is 1o be given eredit for time served pursuantto §.C. Code §24-13-40 to be calculated and applied by the, State

" - Dapartment of Corrections. ’ : : ©E ) - - o

[J The Defendant is to be placed on Central Registry of Ghild Abuse and Néglect pursiiant t0'S.C. Code §17:25-135. ~~~ ~ .-
Pursuant {0 18 U.S.C. Section 922, it is unlawful for 2 person convicted of a violation of Section 16.25-20 or 16.25-65 (Criminal
Domestic Violence) to ship, transpott, possess, or recelve & firearm or ammunition, . '

: SPECIAL CONDITIONS: .

[J RESTITUTION: [} Deferred [J Def Wajves Hearing [ - Ordersd PTUP

Total: & plus 20% fee: $ __ days/hours Public Service Employment
Payment Terms: _ '. Obtain GED [}
[] Setby SCDPPPS : : Attend Vot Rehab, Or Job Corp.

) . May serve WIE baginning

Recipient: Substance Abuse Counseting [
*Fina: o $ Random Drug/Alcohol Testing  [J \
§14-1-206 (Assessments 107.5%) $ Fine may be pd. In equal consecutive waskly/manthly
§14-1-211 (A){1){Cotw. Surcharge) $100 3 prts. of $ Beginning
§14-1-211 (A)(2)}PU!I Surcharge) $100 % $ “ Pald to Public Defendesr Fund
§56-5-2995 (DUl Assessment) $12 $ .
§56-1-286 (DUI Braath Test) $25 $ ’ Other.
Proviso 47,9 (Public Def/Proby) $500 3 .

§14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) $25 $

§14-1-213 (Drug Court Surcharge) $150 $

§50-21-114 (BU! Bresth Test Fee) $50 5 - :

§56-5-2842(J) (Vehicle Agsessment) . $40/ea 3 (J Appointed PD or epoointed othsr counsel,
Proviso 90.5 (SCCJA Surcharge) 35 k3 §47.12 requires $500 ba paid to Clerk

3% tv County (if paid in instaltments) 3 during probation.

TOTAL ’ $ -

$ Presiding Judge

Clerk of Court’Deputy Clerk Judge Code: ~ /

* Court Reporter;

SCCA217 (03/2011) ‘
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: 'DOCKET_NO. 2010-GS-29- [&0|

The State of South Carohna ~

County of Lancaster

ARREST WARRANT NUMBER/DOA

M164311 (DOA-5-5-10)

|

ACTION OF GRAND JURY

Fo#rson of Grand Jury

Date: ms 3 a zg m :

VERDICT -

' COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

" AUGUST TERM 2010

THE STATE._
vs. -
Anthony Rodriekus Carter i >
TUNESY e s&-é\@é,\s; Pt

m———

Foreperson of Petit Jury
Date:

Indictnient for

| Possessron or Dnsplay of Firearm or

~ Knife- Durlng Commission of a Vloient '

Crime

SC Code: § 1623490
"~ - CDRCode: 0549
Class; Felony, F

e

£0
F10E OF CLERK

gF COURT

p g 1a AN

4 oF COURT
.]:f ::}%,STER. st




673

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) INDICTMENT
COUNTY OF LANCASTER ) |

At a Court of General Sessions, (:onvens;d on August 19, 2010, the Grand Jurors of

Lancaster County present upon their oath:

POSSESSION OR DISPLAY OF FIREARM OR KNIFE DURING COMMISS!ON OF A
. VIOLENT CRIME =~
That Anthony Rocjriekus Carter did in ,Lancaster County on or__abqut May 3, 2010,
possess o visibly display~ a firearm or knife, to wit: a handgun during-h'as/her' |
- commission of a violent crime, 0 wit: Murder of daylen Jackson, in violation of §16-23-
490, Code of Laws of South Carolina, ( 1976) as amended

Against the peace and dlgmty of the State, and contrary to the statute ih such case

made and prowded
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- STA’I"E OF SOUTH CAROLINA IN THE COURT OF GENERAL SESSIONS

—

COUNTY OF ‘
LANCASTER ' TR e
STATE ) ) INDICTMENT/CASEY,  2010@ps. 29 .1001
S.
Anthony Rodriekus Carter ; ANVE; L M164311
AKAT - - ) Date of Offense:  _5/3710
Racs: ©T . Sex: ) S.C. Code §; 16~23-430
DOB; o SS#: ) CDR Code #: 0549
Address: . .7 ) - : : :
City, State, Zipr .~ - en ). - SENTENCE SHEET . »+
. D L T Dl ) LA TR S AR

“COL Yes LTINS LT €MV Ves [IN6 U] Hazmat ves CTNo 0] .~ "
In disposition of the said indictment comes now the Defandant who was' - &I .CONVICTED OF or  [J PLEADS
TO: Possession of Firearm During Commission of Violent Crime

Inviolationof § - 16-23-490 L ofthe §.C, Code of Laws, bearing CDR Code # 0549 -

X NON-VIOLENT [J VIOLENT LJ SERIOUS: [ = MOST SERIOUS . [ Mandatory GPS - [ §17.25245
B I T L o {CSC wiminor 1% or Lewd Act) .

The chargets: [l As indicted, {1 Lesserincluded Offense, [}  Defendant Waives Presentment o Grand Jury. - .. . (det’s Initials)

Thepleris: [ .Without Negotiations or Recommendation, ~ - - E] Négotiated Sentance, {1 Recommendation by the State. _

ggST: - /“_’\"(“;T . . ‘ . e

; X 514 : . R A OLFri
So¥eitor L_Qmj SC Bar # Defendant ~ Altorney for DefenM © SCBar#

REFQRE, the Defandant 15 Committed to the State Department of Cotrections  [[] County Detenttén Céntor,

for a determinate term of .%-; dayeEstths/yéars or - [ under tha Youthful Offender Act not to exceed years
and/or to pay & fine of § ; provided that upon the service of . days/months/years and or payment
of$ ©; plus costs and assessments as applicable®; the balance Is suspanded with probation for

monthsfyears and subject to South Carolina Department of Probation, Parole and Parqon Servicas standatd conditions of probation, which are

incggporated by reference: ' —
gf:aomcumsm or—F—CONSECUTVE to séntehce on: AP b 2?84 O f o pr 0 -

The Defendant is to be given credit for time served pursuant to'S:C. Code §24-13-40 fo ba calculated and applied by the State
Deparirnent of Corrections. .
[J The Defendant is to be placed on Central Registry of Child Abuse and Neglect pursuant to 8.C, Code §17-25-135.
Pursuant to 18 U.5.C, Section 922, )6 unlawful for a'pereon convictad of a violation of Section 16-25-20 or 16.25.68 (Criminal
Domestic Violance) to ship, transport, possess, or recelve a firearm or ammunition; )
) SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

O RESTITUTION: [] Deferred [ Def Waives Heating [ Ordered PTUP

Total: § : plus 20% fee:” $ .. daysfhours Public Service Employment
Payment Tarms: . Obtain GED [}
[ Setby SCDPPPS . Attend Voc. Rehab, Or Job Corp,
' : May serva W/E beginning
Recipient: ) Substance Abuse Counseling [
“Fine: §. Random Drug/Alcohol Testing [
§14-1-2086 (Assessments 107.5%) . % Fine may be pd. in equal consecutive weekly/monthly
§14-1-211 (AJ1)Conv. Surcharge) 3100 A pmts. of Baginning
§14-1-211 (A)2YDUV! Surcharge) $100 ] ] - Paid to Public Defender Fund
§58-5-2095 (DUI Assessment) $12 $ i :
§56-1-286 (DU Breath Test) $25 $ Other:
Proviso 47.9 (Public Det/Prob) 3500 5 -
§14-1-212 (Law Enforce. Funding) . $25 3
§14-1.213 (Drug Count Surcharge) - $160 $
" §50-21-114 (BUi Breath Test Fee) $50 $ )
§56-5-2042(J) (Vehicle Assessment) $40/ea $ {1 Appainted PD or appointed other counsal,
Proviso 80.5 (8CCJA Surchargs) : 56 $ §47.12 requiras $500 be paid to Clerk
3% to County (if paid in instaliments) ; $ during probation.
TOTAL : : S 2

Clerk of Court/Daputy Clerk
* Court Reporter:

Presiding Judge N
Judge Cote:
Santence Date ! 71

SCCA217 (03/2011)
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)
CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

Counsel for appellant certifies that this Record on Appeal contains all material proposed to
be included by any of the parties and not any other material and that this Record on Appeal
complies to the best of my ability, with the August 13, 2007, order from the South Carolina
Supreme Court entitled “Interim Guidance Regarding Personal Data Identifiers and Other
Sensitive Information in Appellate Court Filings.”

July 15th, 2013

Appellate Defender -

- South Carolina Commission on Indigent Defense
Division of Appellate Defense
PO Box 11589
Columbia, S. C. 29211-1589
(803) 734-1330 ‘

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT =~
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS
Appeal from Lancaster Cour;ty ' R F ﬁ ﬁ fv RB
J. Ernest Kinard, Jr., Circuit Court Judge JUL1 b 2013'
THE STATE, SG Gourt o1 Appeals
RESPONDENT,
'
ANTHONY RODRICKUS CARTER,

APPELLANT .

APPELLATE CASE NO. 2011-203566 -

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that a true copy of the Record on Appeal in the above referenced case has been
served upon William Edgar Salter III, Esquire, at ‘the Rembert Dennis Building, 1000 Assembly

Street, Room 519, Columbia, SC 29201 this 15th day of July, 2013.-

LSt “Fo

Brandon Hall L
Administrative Specialist

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO before me
fs43th day of July, 2013.

m@ (e M\ Ls)

Notary Public for SoutirCarolina
My Commission Expires: July 24, 2022.




